
Question # RFP Reference QUESTION ANSWER
Gen-1 W52P1J-12-R-0115. 

page 53, L.5.1.5
A JV formed for the purposes of EAGLE cannot have an existing facility clearance.  Is 
it sufficient if the majority member company has a clearance?  Is it sufficient if all the 
member companies have a facility clearance?

In accordance with L.5.1.5, For those Offerors submitting a proposal as a newly formed 
partnership, joint venture, or limited liability Company, the requirement for a current 
Facility Clearance at the SECRET level can be satisfied through the submittal of 
documentation evidencing the fact that the prime or managing partner of a partnership, 
joint venture, limited liability company, etc., possesses the Facility Clearance.

Gen-2 Solicitation - PWS C-1, 
page 1, Para 1.1.2 

1.1.2 outlines the four primary divisions of the FBGA LRC. Logistics Planning, 
Support and Execution Division is identified as one of the four areas but is not 
identified in section C-5 of the PWS.  Is there as requirement for the contractor to 
support this area of the LRC operations?

The contractor is not required to perform under the Planning, Support and Execution 
Division.  Please refer to Transportation, Maintenance and Supply functions of PWS 
for required tasks.  

Gen-3 The EAGLE BOA Step 
2 solicitation - page 9 

The EAGLE BOA Step 2 solicitation, page 9 of 15, states, “Do not identify 
subcontractors that are only required to achieve socioeconomic subcontracting goals or 
other goals not related to capability.” If a teammate was identified in our Step 2 
proposal for a specific capability, can that same teammate also be proposed in our 
response for additional capability areas if specifically needed to meet the government’s 
stated socioeconomic subcontracting goals.

Please refer to Amendment 0002, Section A, Paragraph 2.

Gen-4 The EAGLE BOA Step 
2 solicitation - page 9 

The EAGLE BOA Step 2 solicitation, page 9 of 15, states, “Do not identify 
subcontractors that are only required to achieve socioeconomic subcontracting goals or 
other goals not related to capability.” Neither the BOA nor the solicitation appears to 
contain an exception allowing for additional teammates to be bid expressly to meet 
socioeconomic subcontracting goals. Please provide clarification.

Please refer to Amendment 0002, Section A, Paragraph 2.

Gen-5 Task Order RFP The Task Order RFP does not identify an estimated contract award date nor a potential 
transition start date.  Will the government provide estimated timelines for these key 
events?

The Transition-In period is estimated to begin within 15 days of the award date.  A 
formal notice to proceed will be provided to the contractor.  It is anticipated that the 
task order will be awarded in April 2013, however this date is subject to change. 

Gen-6 N/A Please provide the anticipated contract start date. Please refer to question Gen-5
Gen-7 RFP Section A For pricing purpose, what is the anticipated award date for this contract? Please refer to question Gen-5
Gen-8 Task Order RFP The Task Order RFP does not identify an estimated contract award date nor a potential 

transition start date.  Will the government provide estimated timelines for these key 
events?

Please refer to question Gen-5

Gen-9 RFP, Section A, page 2, 
paragraph d)

When is the anticipated start date of the Base Period? This information is required to 
accurately estimate forecasted rates.

Please refer to question Gen-5

Gen-10 Solicitation Section A Section A identifies the Period of Performance (POP) days after award to begin and end 
Transition-in, Base, and Option Years. To properly price the work efforts could the 
Government provide a start and end of the Transition-in and base year?

Please refer to question Gen-5

Gen-11 General Will the Government provide an estimated acquisition timeline for this solicitation? Please refer to question Gen-5

Gen-12 1-H, STEP THREE 
TASK ORDER 
REQUEST, Paragraph 
d)

States “Step Two Offerors were required to demonstrate the capability to perform all 
three functional areas.  That capability may have been achieved with or without 
teammates.  Any approved teammates listed in the Offerors in Attachment 0002 – Team 
Arrangement, may be utilized to perform any of the functions in Step Three.  The 
Government will verify that the offeror’s proposal includes approved teammates by 
comparing the Offeror’s proposal to their BOA Attachment 0002 – Team Arrangement.  
Question: It is understood that the offeror can use any teammates from Attachment 
0002 to perform any portion of a task order that is issued.  Could you please clarify this 
interpretation of the solicitation?

Yes, please refer to Amendment 0002, Section H Paragraph H-01

Gen-13 Solicitation and PWS We are under the assumption this opportunity should be referred to as FBGA LRC?  Is 
this correct?

This requirement should be referred to as Fort Benning Logistics Support Services.

General Questions



Gen-14 No reference If you establish a Surge CLIN, will the Government provide projected surge workload 
for Transportation, as was done for Supply (projected Special Projects) and 
Maintenance (MST/UME)?

The Government does not intend to use a Surge CLIN. The CLIN structure is outlined 
in Attachment 0005.

Gen-15 No reference Will the government provide a seniority roster for all represented workers to be used in 
cost calculations?

IAW FAR 22.1020, a seniority list will be provided to the successor contractor at the 
commencement of the succeeding contract

Gen-16 Amendment 0001 Block 11 states "(a) By completing items 8 and 15, and returning 2 signed copies of the 
amendments etc.". Will the Government accept 1 signed copy of this amendment as it 
will be uploaded to the Army Single Face to Industry Bid Response System?

Please refer to Amendment 0003, Section L.1.7

Gen-17 N/A Will the Government provide any historical estimates on the number of FTEs currently 
performing the logistics support services at FBGA?

No, the contractor shall use the workload data found in the Tech Exhibits in order to 
formulate their approach for meeting PWS requirements.

Gen-18 N/A Amendment 1 posted on 24 October included updated Technical Exhibits (with 
associated workload data that will change our proposed workforce).  Will the 
Government consider extending the proposal due date to 22 November 2012?

Please refer to Amendment 0003, Section A, 1)

Gen-19 General Please confirm that the Contractor can invoice monthly for the Firm Fixed Price 
Transition In CLIN.  Also, will the Government provide any documentation (i.e. 
DD254) to evidence completion of the transition in CLIN or will the end of the 60 day 
transition-in period satisfy completion?

Yes the Contractor may invoice monthly for the Firm Fixed Price Transition -In CLIN.  
Please refer to Amendment 0003, Section H, Paragraph H-04.  The Government will 
not provide any documentation to evidence completion of the Transition CLIN.

Gen-20 Award Fee Request the Government allow the Contractor to provisionally invoice 15% of the 
quarterly award fee pool each month.  

Please refer to Amendment 0003, Section A, paragraphs 3) and 4)

Gen-21 Award Fee We recognize the Government will not allow the unearned award fee to be "roll over" to 
the following award fee period.  However, would the Government allow the unearned 
award fee to be set aside to be used for cost overrun or to be used as a special incentive.  
This would allow the government the ability to keep the unearned fee to be used at its 
discretion at a later time.

Please refer to Amendment 0003, Section A, paragraphs 3) and 4)

Gen-22 RFP Section H.3 Will contractor personnel be working with explosives?  Is so, what type of explosives. The contractor will manage issues and turn-ins from the ASP. 

Gen-23 RFP Section I Request that DFAR 252.219-7004 be added for those Contractors that participate in the 
Small Business Subcontracting Plan (Test Program).  This clause is already included in 
the EAGLE BOA.

This clause will not be added to the RFP.  If applicable, it may be awarded at contract 
award.

Gen-24 General, page 3 Request the Government remove the reference to DFAR 252.204-7008 (Export 
Controlled Items).  There is no requirement to provide OCONUS support and this 
clause in not applicable to this task order.

This clause will not be removed.

Gen-25 Solicitation - Ref H-01, 
Step 3 Task Order 
Requests, page 14.

Can any Teammate included in the offerors BOA Attachment 002 be proposed for any 
functional area or subtask?  For example, if a teammate was proposed in the functional 
area of Material Maintenance only, can they be proposed in the functional area of 
Transportation Support?

Yes, for a functional area that a Prime BOA holder demonstrated an organizational 
capability with teammates, the Prime BOA holder may propose itself, approved 
teammates or subcontractor(s) for the purposes of meeting the Offeror's Subcontracting 
Participation Plan.

Gen-26 SF 33, page 1, block 9 As a result of hurricane Sandy and the massive storms that has forced closures of 
multiple organizations along the East Coast, will the Government consider extending 
the closing date for solicitations W52P1J-12-R-0112 & W52P1J-12-R-0115?  

Please refer to Amendment 0003, Section A, 1)

Gen-27 SF 33, page 1, block 9 As a result of the damage caused by hurricane Sandy and the massive storms that has 
forced closures of multiple organizations, including the Federal Government,  along the 
East Coast, will the Government consider extending the closing date for solicitation 
W52P1J-12-R-0115?  

Please refer to Amendment 0003, Section A, 1)



Gen-28 SF 33, Block 9 Request for Extension of Submission Date for the Fort Benning Logistics Readiness 
Center Proposal Solicitation W52P1J-12-R-0115 In view of the recent major 
destructive storm in the Northeast U.S. and our closure of many of our corporate 
facilities from October 29 and 30, 2012 and perhaps longer due to safety concerns, 
continuing power outages, difficulties with computer networks and staff coordination, 
and the short-term need to allow many of our employees to recover from the storm’s 
damage, we respectfully request an extension for adding submitting our proposal for the 
Fort Benning Logistics Readiness Center Solicitation by the 15 November 2012 
submission date. We request that the submission date be extended to 21 November 
2012.

Please refer to Amendment 0003, Section A, 1)

Gen-29 Solicitation SF33 page 
#1, Para. 9

Given the weather conditions in various areas of the United States, and potential 
massive electrical outages, will the government issue an extension on the submission 
date for this proposal?

Please refer to Amendment 0003, Section A, 1)

Gen-30 Amendment 0002, page 
2, paragraph Section A. 
2) 

If an offeror selects a subcontractor for purposes of meeting small business 
participation goals, does that selected subcontractor need to be considered "major" and 
therefore given in excess of 20%?

It is not required that subcontractors proposed for the purposes of accomplishing small 
business participation goals be a "major" subcontractor.

Gen-31 Amendment 0002, page 
2, paragraph Section A. 
2)

Will this selected subcontractor have to provide past performance with subsequent 
attachments to  the offeror?

The instructions in Past Performance instructions in Section L, paragraph L.5.3 of the 
RFP also  apply to subcontractors provided for the purposes of accomplishing small 
business participation goals.

Gen-32 General: Waste Streams Does the USG own the waste?  If so, can the waste be turned in to the facility or post 
HWSA?

Yes, the government owns the waste and can be turned into the facility.   

Gen-33 General We desire to submit a full, detailed critical-path transition schedule for Transition 
Phase-In as an attachment/appendix to technical approach. Will the Government 
consider and review a full Critical Path Method (CPM) appendix schedule as part of the 
total score?

Offeror's must comply with Sections L and M of the RFP.

Gen-34 Section I Request FAR 52.215-21 be removed, this clause is not applicable under a Cost Plus 
Award Fee Contract.

This clause will not be removed.

Gen-35 Section I Request FAR 52.228-5 be removed, this clause is not applicable under a Cost Plus 
Award Fee contract.

This clause is applicable to the Firm Fixed Price Transition-In CLIN.

Gen-36 Section I Request FAR 52.232-8 be removed, this clause is not applicable under a Cost Plus 
Award Fee contract.

This clause is applicable to the Firm Fixed Price Transition-In CLIN.

Gen-37 Section I Request FAR 52.249-8 be removed, this clause is not applicable under a Cost Plus 
Award Fee contract.

This clause is applicable to the Firm Fixed Price Transition-In CLIN.

Gen-38 Section I Request FAR 52.215-21IV be removed, this clause is not applicable under a Cost Plus 
Award Fee contract.

This clause will not be removed.

Gen-39 Solicitation, Page 2, 
Section A Narrative, 
Paragraphs L & M

The Government has responded to questions for Logistics Support Services at Fort 
Campbell, Kentucky, Solicitation W52P1J-12-R-0112.  Per the RFP, the responses are 
posted on the EAGLE website at: http://www.aschq.army.mil/ac/aaisdus/EAGLE.aspx 
and they include random questions pertaining to both Forts Campbell and Benning.

Will the Government post separate responses to the Fort Benning questions onto the 
EAGLE website in the Fort Benning-designated area as well?

Yes, responses to Fort Benning questions will be posted separately.

Gen-40 Solicitation - Ref H-01, 
Step 3 Task Order 
Requests, page 14.

Can any Teammate included in the offerors BOA Attachment 002 be proposed for any 
functional area or subtask?  For example, if a teammate was proposed in the functional 
area of Material Maintenance only, can they be proposed in the functional area of 
Transportation Support?

Yes, any approved teammates listed in the Offerors Attachment 0002 Team 
Arrangement, may be utilized to perform any of the functions in Step Three.



Gen-41 Amendment 3 Section L 
5.1.4                              
SECRET Facility 
Clearance

With a one page limitation, defined in  Amendment 3 L.4.2.1 vii, would a letter from 
our Facility Clearance Officer providing name, cage code, address and security level 
suffice as "proof" of a current US Facility Clearance at the SECRET Level which could 
then be verified by the Contracting Officer in ISFD? 

Please refer to Amendment 0004, Section L, paragraph L.4.2.1.vi.

Gen-42 Task Order RFP, pg 52, 
Section M.4.1.1.i.4

Will the government provide additional information on how it will evaluate this 
element? 

Please refer to Amendment 0004, paragraphs L.5.2.1.1.1(iv) and M.4.1.1(i)(4)

Gen-43 RFP - general  Is the contractor required to provide any contractor-owned/leased equipment? The facility, vehicles, equipment or services that will be provided as
GFE are those listed in the applicable Tech Exhibits.  This is a performance
based services requirement.  As such, it is up to each offeror to determine
and propose an approach to satisfy the requirements of the PWS, including
vehicles, equipment and personnel.

Gen-44 General Where should offeror propose costs for additional ODCs not covered under customer 
provided numbers?

The Government does not intend to allow recovery of those items excluded from the 
ODC definition.

Gen-45 RFP, Section H-02 
(Government Property), 
page 14

Request the Government include the following statement to clause 4-H.  "Contractor 
shall not be liable for any loss, damage, destruction of theft of Government property as 
a result of Third Party or Government employee gross negligence or willful 
misconduct.  Under no circumstances will the Contractor’s total liability exceed the 
dollar value of this contract."

This statement will not be included.

Gen-46 RFP, general Will the government provide a breakout of the workforce by shift? This information will not be provided.  As this is a performance based requirement, it is 
up to the Offeror to submit a proposal based on its approach to meeting the contract 
requirements.

Gen-47 Solicitation Section I - 
Clauses I-159 and I-164, 
pages 36 and 39

Each of these provisions require the contractor to identify, at the time of proposal 
submission,  hazardous material expected to be utilized for contract performance.  Will 
the government please provide this list (to include the name, national stock number and 
the relevant Act (I-164)) as we are unable to determine this information from the 
documents provided in the solicitation.

The Government will not require the contractor to deliver hazardous material.  
Hazardous material may result from services performed.    

Question # RFP Reference QUESTION ANSWER
LM-1 Solicitation - page 57, 

L.5.4.3.5.3, c.
L.5.4.3.5.3, c. states that offerors are to complete a Bill of Materials (BOM) in an Excel 
file, to include a basis of estimate. Since the government has provided surrogate 
numbers under L.5.4.3.4 for ODC's/Materials, please confirm that this BOM is not 
required. 

A priced Bill of Material is not required for proposal submission as surrogate values 
have been provided for Other Direct Costs (ODCs). This paragraph was removed in 
Amendment 0003.

LM-2 RFP, page 63, 
M.4.4.1.1; paragraph iii

Paragraph iii states "The Government will evaluate the extent (percentage based on 
total contract value) to which an offeror identifies and commits to utilizing SB in the 
performance of the proposed contract as it relate to the goals of:"   Are the small 
business goals stated in paragraph iii based on subcontracted dollars? If not, please 
clarify what the stated goals are based on. 

Per Section L, Paragraph L.5.5.1.1 and Attachment 0006, Contract Participation 
Matrix, the small business goals are based on the total contract value.

LM-3 RFP, page 58, L.5.5.1.2; 
paragraph ii

Paragraph ii states "If an offeror proposes substantially different small business 
participation than provided in response to paragraph L.5.1.2(i) above, then they must 
explain how they will accomplish this and/or the reason for the higher/lower proposed 
level."  Is paragraph L.5.1.2(i) the correct reference?

No, the correct reference is L.5.5.1.2(i).  Please refer to Amendment 0003.

LM-4 RFP, page 57, 
L.5.4.3.5.1

Paragraph states "Offerors and all proposed teammates and all proposed major 
subcontractors are required to provide cost information for the Fort Benning LRC 
requirements."  If a teammate is less than the 20% of the total value of the contract, is 
the prime contractor required to provide cost information for the teammate.

Please refer to Amendment 0003, paragraph L.5.4.3.  Offerors and all proposed 
teammates and all proposed subcontractors are required to provide cost information.

L&M Questions



LM-5 RFP, page 47-48, L-9, 
paragraph b

Paragraph b states "The offeror shall provide with its offer a written plan describing 
how it will continue to perform the essential contractor services listed in Attachment 
0008 Mission Essential Contractor Services..."  Where are offerors expected to provide 
the essential contractor services plan in the proposal?  Is the essential contractor 
services plan in addition to the 9 pages allowed for Mission Capability Narrative?

Please refer to Amendment 0003, paragraph L.4.2.2.i. 

LM-6 Task Order RFP, Page 
54 of 55, Para M.4.4.1.1.

Our small businesses will perform specific functions  on this contract which capitalize 
on their core competencies.  As a result, it could be difficult to maintain the 
government's SB goal of 39% of total contract dollars, depending on which work 
centers are surged during the contract POP.  Will the  government evaluate the offeror's 
initial submission for compliance with the 39% SB goal and then work with the 
winning bidder throughout the contract POP, to adjust that goal based on surge 
requirements?

The Government will evaluate the Offeror's proposed small business participation in 
accordance with Section M, Paragraph M.4.4.1.1 of the solicitation. The successful 
Offeror will be awarded a contract based on their final proposal. The approved 
subcontracting plan will be incorporated and made a material part of the task order.

LM-7 RFP, pages 52, 
paragraph L.4.2.2 and 
page 54, paragraph 
L.5.2.1.1.1 

Please verify that the offeror is required to detail an approach to all PWS requirements,  
address implementation of AIS,  provide business processes for the items listed in 
L.5.2.1.1.1 i through v, and provide a transition plan within a limit of 9 pages?

Please refer to Amendment 0003, paragraph L.4.2.2.i.

LM-8 RFP page 53, Section L, 
paragraph L.5.1.6.1

Where is the SF 1408 referenced in L.5.1.6.1? Please refer to Amendment 0003, Attachment 0015

LM-9 RFP page 54, Section L, 
paragraph L.5.2.1.1.1

RFP paragraph L.5.2.1.1.1 is followed by L.5.2.1.1.1.2; should it be L.5.2.1.1.1.1? Please refer to Amendment 0003, paragraph L.5.2.1.1.1.1

LM-10 RFP, Page 48, Paragraph 
L.5.4.3.5.3 c.

The RFP states that a "Priced Bill of Material in Excel format, to include basis of 
estimate, i.e., competitive quotes, catalog prices, history, etc." is required. However, 
Attachment 005 provides plug numbers for Other Direct Costs, which according to 
section L.5.4.3.4 of the RFP includes "material and/or equipment that cannot be 
acquired through Government supply system".  Question:  Since the Government has 
already provided plug numbers for material and/or equipment that cannot be acquired 
through Government supply system, do we still have to provide a Priced Bill of 
Material?           

A priced Bill of Material is not required for proposal submission as surrogate values 
have been provided for Other Direct Costs (ODCs). This paragraph was removed in 
Amendment 0003.

LM-11 RFP L.5.4.3.5.3 (c), pg 
57, Indirect Expense 
Rates, Material

RFP reference states, "The following data shall be provided for all prime and 
teammates proposals. Material: Priced bill of material in Excel format, to include basis 
of estimate, i.e., competitive quotes, catalog prices, history, etc."  Since CLIN 0005A, 
Other Direct Costs, is a plugged value on Attachment 0005, COST/Price Matrix, will 
the Government provide another CLIN or clarify where bidders should post the bill of 
material costs?  Will another CLIN be provided?

A priced Bill of Material is not required for proposal submission as surrogate values 
have been provided for Other Direct Costs (ODCs). This paragraph was removed in 
Amendment 0003.

LM-12 RFP, pg 56, L.5.4.3.4 - 
Cost/Price Factor

This specific section under Section L.5.4 Cost/Price Factor addresses in part Other 
Direct Costs (ODC) surrogate numbers and defines what ODC items are included in the 
surrogate numbers.  The Government also defines ODC items not included in the 
surrogate numbers.  With the exception of subcontractor labor is it the intent of the 
Government to allow recovery of the excluded items pursuant to Section I-142(b) 
Reimbursing costs?  If not, will the Government provide an avenue for bidders to price 
the excluded items since no other ODC CLIN exists except CLIN 0005AA, which 
contains the surrogate numbers.

No, the Government does not intend to allow recovery of those items excluded from the 
ODC definition.

LM-13 RFP, Page 47, Paragraph 
L-9

This paragraph requires the offeror to provide a written Mission Essential Contractor 
Services Plan with its offer.   However, the solicitation does not specify where to 
include this plan in our offer. Is it acceptable to include this submittal in the General 
Documents portion of our submittal? 

Please refer to Amendment 0003, paragraph L.4.2.2.i. 



LM-14 RFP, page 52, Paragraph 
L.4.2.2

This paragraph assigns 9 pages to our Mission Capability Narrative. The Mission 
Capability Narrative includes a discussion on a Transition-in Plan (Paragraph 
L.5.2.1.1.2), which could require several pages of the 9-page section to complete. Since 
the incumbent contractor does not have to dedicate several pages of their write-up to a 
Transition-in Plan, it appears that the non-incumbents are at a competitive disadvantage 
on this procurement. Would the Government consider providing a separate page count 
for the Transition-in Plan to eliminate this apparent imbalance?     

Please refer to Amendment 0003, paragraph L.4.2.2.i

LM-15 RFP, page 58, Paragraph 
L.5.5.3

This paragraph requires the other than small business offerors to submit a separate 
Small Business Subcontracting Plan with their proposal. However, the RFP does not 
define a page limit for this document.  Are there any guidelines associated with 
submitting this plan?

In accordance with L.4.2.1(ix), no page limit applies to the Small Business 
Subcontracting Plan described in paragraph L.5.5.3.  Please refer to FAR 19.7.

LM-16 RFP, Page 63, Paragraph 
M.4.4.1.1.iii

This paragraph identifies a SB goal of 39% of total contract value.  This goal appears to 
be very high based on recent experience, where 10-15% of total contract value is the 
norm and current DoD Small Business goal for Subcontracting in FY2012 & 2013 is 
36.7% of subcontracted dollars.   The current goal is out of proportion to DoD guidance 
and creates added costs to the contract due to the cost of managing more 
subcontractors. It also creates a fragmented command and control structure, because of 
the requirement to meet goals in all of the SB categories.  We would suggest a SB goal 
in alignment with DoD directives.   Would you please confirm if the SB goal on this 
contract is 39% of total contract value or 39% subcontracted dollars?

Per Section L, Paragraph L.5.5.1.1 and Attachment 0006, Contract Participation 
Matrix, the small business goals are based on the total contract value.

LM-17 RFP, Page 63, Paragraph 
M.4.4.1.1.iii

Is there a legislative policy that is directing the SB goal of 39% of total contract value 
on this contract? 

No, legislative policy is not directing the SB goal of 39% of total contract value.

LM-18 RFP, Page 63, Paragraph 
M.4.4.1.1.iii

Can you provide the Offerors with actual data from the incumbent's contract relative to 
the percent of total contract value being performed by SBs?

No, the Government will not provide this information.

LM-19 RFP, Page 52, Paragraph 
L.4.1.1, Page 54, 
Paragraph L.5.2.1.2

Paragraph L.5.2.1.2 requires the Offerors to identify what firm is responsible for 
performing each of the higher level identified in the PWS on the organization chart. 
However, Paragraph L.4.1.1 requires the Offerors to remove the Offeror's identifying 
information from all pages of the Technical Proposal after the cover sheet. Could the 
Government please provide the Offerors with guidance (e.g., designating the Prime as 
Company A, Subcontractor #1 as Company 2, etc.) to how we comply with these 
conflicting requirements?

Please refer to Amendment 0003, paragraph L.4.1.

LM-20 Solicitation, Page 53, 
Para L.5.1.5

Does the government require our copy of DD FL 381-R as "proof of possession of a 
current U.S. Facility Clearance" or is there another document the government requires?

The 381-R is Acceptable.

LM-21 Solicitation, page 53, 
Para L.5.1.6.1

States in part…"An SF 1408 has been attached to this solicitation which contains the 
specific procedures that are considered part of an adequate system."  Could the 
government, please provide this form?

Please refer to Amendment 0003, Attachment 0015

LM-22 Solicitation, Section L, 
page 47, Para L-9(b)

Question 1:  Is the written plan for performing essential contractor services part of the 
page count?  Question 2:  In which section of the proposal does the government want 
this plan?  Question 3:  How will this plan be evaluated?

Please refer to Amendment 0003, paragraphs L.4.2.2.i and M.4.1.i.  

LM-23 Solicitation, page 53, 
Para L.4.2.5

We are under the assumption Attachment 0006is not included in the page count.  Is this 
correct?

Yes, this is correct.  Attachment 0006 is not included in the page count of L.4.2.5.ii

LM-24 Solicitation, page 53, 
Para L.5.1.6.1

We are assuming "current Government approval status" means DCAA and/or DCMA 
approved.  If our assumption is incorrect, please provide clarification as to what is 
meant by "current Government approval status".

This assumption is correct.



LM-25 Solicitation, Page 47, 
Para L-9(B)

Paragraph states "The offeror shall provide with its offer a written plan describing how 
it will continue to perform the essential contractor service …".  What is the page limit 
for this plan, if any?  Is this included within the page limit for other sections?  If so, 
what section?

Please refer to Amendment 0003, paragraph L.4.2.2.i.

LM-26 Solicitation; Page 52 of 
64; Paragraph L.4.2.1. v 
and vi

If approved Step 2 teammates are being used, is there any requirement for the letter of 
Intent and/or Letters of Consent referenced in these two sections? 

No, if Step 2 teammates are being used there is no need to submit these documents.

LM-27 Solicitation; Page 52 of 
64; Paragraph L.4.2.3.i

Does the 100 word contract reference requirement apply to the offeror's original Step 2 - 
Attachment 2 (400 word) submissions or does this requirement only pertain to 
additional contracts not originally referenced in the Step 2 Attachment 2 submission? 

The 100 word restriction applies to all contract references provided under L.5.3.1.4(v).

LM-28 Solicitation; Page 47 of 
64; Paragraph L.7

The FAR does not limit the amount of the incentive fee under cost-plus-incentive-fee 
contracts or the amount of either the award fee or the base fee under cost-plus-award-
fee contracts. However, DFARS 216.405-2(c)(ii)(2)(B) limits the amount of the base 
fee under cost-plus-award-fee contracts to 3 percent of the estimated cost.  How does 
the Government intend to set the amount of the remaining award fee and at what level 
will it be set?  

Please refer to Amendment 0003, Section A, paragraphs 3) and 4)

LM-29 Solicitation; Page 57 of 
64; Paragraph L.5.4.3.5.  
(Teammate Pricing)

Does the Government intend for all teammates to submit what industry normally refers 
to as "Unsanitized" pricing in their cost submissions to illustrate how all costs are built 
up or will "sanitized" pricing suffice, so long as the cost narrative includes the Indirect 
Expense data called for in Paragraph L.5.4.3.5.3 a?    

"Unsanitized" pricing shall be submitted.

LM-30 RFP, page 53, L.5.1.6 Are prime contractors, that hold an EAGLE BOA, required to have a government 
approval status for all business systems?   If a contractor has an approved/adequate 
accounting system and billing system from DCAA/DCMA but they have not received 
an approval rating for the remainder of the business systems, will they be allowed to 
bid?

In order to be eligible for award, a contractor must be found responsible IAW FAR Part 
9.  In accordance with paragraph L.5.1.6.1, offerors are required to provide, as part of 
its proposal response, official documentation, from either a successful DCAA audit of 
the offeror's accounting system or a letter from DCMA documenting its 
approval/adequacy of the offeror's accounting system.

LM-31 RFP, Page 52, L.4.2.4iii. What cost & pricing data are contractors required to submit as supporting 
documentation?

Certified Cost and Pricing Data is not required; however, the format in which Other 
Certified Cost and Pricing Data must be received shall be in accordance with FAR 
15.408, Table 15‐2.

LM-32 RFP, Page 56 & 57, 
L.5.4.3.4

If a contractor has costs for ODCs not included in this paragraph for the plug number, 
where should we include the costs?

The Government does not intend to allow recovery of those items excluded from the 
ODC definition.

LM-33 RFP, Page 57, 
L.5.4.3.5.3

Are non-major subcontractors (less than 20% of work) required to submit the same 
detailed information?

Please refer to Amendment 0003, paragraph L.5.4.3.  Offerors and all proposed 
teammates and all proposed subcontractors are required to provide cost information.

LM-34 RFP, Section L, 
Instructions to Offeror's, 
Para. L.5.4.2.5.3

If a teammate and/or subcontractor has submitted a Forward Pricing Rates Proposal 
(FPRP) to the Government (DCAA), do they still need to provide items requested in 
paragraph L.5.4.3.5.3 with their Cost Proposal response?

Yes.

LM-35 RFP, Section L, 
Instructions to Offerors, 
L.5.1.3 & L.5.1.4

"In the event that the PRIME BOA holder wishes to subcontract a capability that the 
PRIME was approved for in its BOA…" Can the government clarify if "capability" 
refers to a PWS task area or a functional area, such as maintenance, supply, or 
transportation?

"Capability" refers to a functional area, such as maintenance, supply or transportation.

LM-36 Page 53, Paragraph 
L.4.2.5

The total page count allotted for this section (and the two subsections) appears to be 
only 25 pages.  However, Section L.4.2.5 ii Past Small Business Participation 
(Realism) also has 25 pages list next to it.
Question:  Does the 25 page count allotment only apply to Section L.4.2.5 ii Past Small 
Business Participation (Realism) or to both sub sections of L.4.2.5?  

The 25 page limit applies to Amendment 0003, paragraph L.4.2.5.ii.



LM-37 RFP, page 53, L.4.2.4.iii states " Supporting Documentation (all cost and pricing data and other than cost and 
pricing data for prime, teammates and/or major subcontractors)". Does this mean 
subcontractors with less than 20% Total Contract Value do not need to submit this cost 
back up data?

Please refer to Amendment 0003, paragraph L.5.4.3.  Offerors and all proposed 
teammates and all proposed subcontractors are required to provide cost information.

LM-38 RFP, page 57, 
L.5.4.3.5.3

states "The following data shall be provided for all prime and teammate(s)/major 
subcontractor(s) proposals. The requested data shall be presented in a manner that will 
allow evaluation of proposed indirect expenses."  Does this mean subcontractors with 
less than 20% Total Contract Value do not need to sub this indirect cost budget data 
and historical indirect costs listed in subparagraphs i. ii. & iii?

Please refer to Amendment 0003, paragraph L.5.4.3.  Offerors and all proposed 
teammates and all proposed subcontractors are required to provide cost information.

LM-39 RFP, pages 47 & 48, L-
9(b) and RPF, pages 52 
& 53, L.4.2 thru L.4.2.5

states "The offeror shall provide with its offer a written plan describing…" Where does 
this plan go in the proposal ? It is not called out in  any of the 5 volumes and their 
contents in Section L.4.2.  Please provide instructions where this plan goes in the 
proposal.

Please refer to Amendment 0003, paragraph L.4.2.2.i.

LM-40 RFP, pages 47 & 48, L-
9.(b) 

states "The offeror shall provide with its offer a written plan describing…"  this 
specifically calls for a complete detailed plan, not an outline of a plan as L.5.2.1..1.2 
states "The Offeror shall outline a Transition-In Plan"  Is in fact a complete plan 
required to be submitted with the proposal addressing all the element in L-9.(b).(2)(i) 
thru (v)?

Please refer to Amendment 0003, paragraph L.5.2.1.1.2.

LM-41 RFP, pages 47 & 48, L-
9.(b) 

if a complete plan is required with the proposal a 10 day extension is requested to 
enable sufficient time to research and write the required detailed plan

Please refer to Amendment 0003, Section A, 1)

LM-42 Solicitation file name 
0000, page 57, 
Reference L.5.4.3.4

Can the government clarify that offerors are allowed to apply fee on the Other Direct 
Cost (ODCs) CLIN.

Fee is not applicable to ODC.

LM-43 Solicitation file name 
0000, page 52,  Section 
L.4.2.3  - Past 
Performance

Are we to provide a Past Performance Summary (100 word limit) for all past 
performance being submitted, or only for those additional contracts being submitted 
(that were not submitted as part of Eagle Step 2)?

Please refer to paragraph L.5.3.1.2, offerors are afforded the opportunity to provide up 
to one additional past performance contract references for itself and
each proposed teammate or major subcontractor, (beyond those provided with Offerors 
BOA proposal) but are not required.

LM-44 Solicitation file name 
0000, page 14, H-01 
Step Three Task Order 
Request and page 63, 
M.4.4.1.1 Small 
Business Participation

This section states "Failure to comply with any terms of the Task Orders to include 
meeting small business subcontracting goals, may result in negative past performance, 
which could negatively impact an Offerors ability to be successful in future Task Order 
competitions."  To meet both Small Business (SB) and socio-economic goals, can the 
BOA holder add additional subcontractors in PWS areas for which we have an existing 
teammate in order to meet all small business socio-economic goals without changing 
the configuration of the Team on the approved BOA?

Please refer to Amendment 0002, Section H, Paragraph H-01

LM-45 Solicitation file name 
0000, page 14, H-01 
Step Three Task Order 
Request and page 63, 
M.4.4.1.1 Small 
Business Participation

To meet both SB and socio-economic goals, can the BOA holder add additional 
subcontractors in PWS (sub-function) areas for which we can self perform in order to 
meet all socio-economic goals without changing the configuration of the Team on the 
approved BOA?

Please refer to Amendment 0002, Section H, Paragraph H-01

LM-46 CDRL PM-09  Quality 
Control Plan;  and RFP, 
page 54, L.5.2.1.1.1 iii

Is the draft Quality Control Plan included in the 9 page technical?  If so, does the 
Section L response meet the requirements of the Quality Control Plan draft?

The Quality Control Plan is a CDRL (PM-09) required from the successful contractor 
after contract award. 



LM-47 Solicitation L.5.3 Page 
54

Question:  Solicitation allows for offeror to submit up to three additional references for 
past performance.  However there is no provision for updating existing past 
performance.  In this instance page/word limitations precluded us from including all 
relevant information into the EAGLE BOA 2 submission.  The Ft. Benning solicitation 
calls for specific types of work that we have done under prior contracts but three 
aspects of this work is not included in the current BOA 2 submission.  How can we 
update the BOA 2 submission or is there a process by which we can post some kind of 
addendum

Please refer to paragraph L.5.3.1.2, offerors are afforded the opportunity to provide up 
to one additional past performance contract references for itself and each proposed 
teammate or major subcontractor, (beyond those provided with Offerors BOA proposal) 
but are not required.

LM-48 Section L, L-9; page 47 
of 64; Section L, L.4 
Proposal Structure; 
CDRLs

L-9 states "The offeror shall provide with its offer a written plan describing how it will 
continue to perform the essential contractor services shown in attachment 0008...". 
Section L.4 makes no mention of  submitting this with the offerors proposal. Review of 
the CDRLs provided with the solicitation, indicates only a contingency plan required 
60 days after the award of the contract. Is it the Government's intention that the Offeror 
provide a Continuation of Essential Contractor Services Plan with our proposal 
response and, if so, where in the proposal response would the Government prefer the 
Offeror to place it?

Please refer to Amendment 0003, paragraph L.4.2.2.i.

LM-49 Solicitation page 47, 
paragraph L-9

This paragraph requires the offeror to submit with their proposal a Written Plan for 
Continuation of Essential Contractor Services, in accordance with DFARS 252.237-
7024 and include those services listed in Attachment 0008.  Is this meant to be a 
Continuity of Operations Plan (COOP) covering the services listed in the attachment?  
If not, please clarify. In which volume of the submission should this plan be included 
with, as it is not listed anywhere in Paragraphs L.1 through L.5?

Please refer to Amendment 0003, paragraph L.4.2.2.i.

LM-50 Solicitation page 47, 
paragraph L-9

Solicitation refers to Attachment 8, "Mission Essential Contractor Services", but 
Attachment 8 was not provided.  Did the government intend to refer to Attachment 7, 
"Mission Essential Services", or will Attachment 8 be provided?

Please refer to Amendment 0003, Section L-2 (b)

LM-51 Solicitation page 52, 
paragraph L.4.2.1, page 
57, paragraph L.5.1

Section L.4.2.1 lists 9 files to be included in the General Documents Volume, including 
(ix) Small Business Subcontracting Plan. Section L.5.1 (General Documents) does not 
include the Small Business Subcontracting Plan.  Please clarify where the Small 
Business Subcontracting Plan is to be provided.

Please refer to Amendment 0003, Section L.4.2.1.viii.

LM-52 Solicitation page 52, 
paragraph L.4.2.3

Is the 100-word contract reference information narrative (L.4.2.3.i) to be included in 
Attachment 3 (L.4.2.3.ii), or provided in a separate file?

Please refer to paragraph L.5.3.1.4 and L.5.3.6.  These are two separate documents.

LM-53 RFP, L-9 Notice of 
Continuation of 
Essential Contractor 
Services, pg. 47 

Can the Offeror provide the written plan describing how it will continue to perform 
essential contractor services listed in attachment 0008 with the General Documents?

Please refer to Amendment 0003, Section L.4.2.2.i.

LM-54 RFP Section L.4.2.1 Is a transmittal letter permitted to be included in the General Documents section? Information submitted as part of an Offeror's proposal and not requested as specified in 
the RFP will not be reviewed by the Government.

LM-55 RFP Section L.4.2.1(i) Is the Government requesting only the signed SF33 and SF 30 or does the Government 
want to have all the RFP and Amendment Continuation pages included in the General 
Documents section of the proposal?

The Government is only requesting signed SF33 and SF30 page and the remaining 
pages of the RFP which would require Offeror fill‐in.

LM-56 L.5.2.1.4 (RFP page 54) 
and Attachment 0002

Because of the complexity of the staffing mix, and since the Offeror cannot alter 
Attachment 0002 to additionally explain the staffing/labor mix, will the Government 
consider increasing the page allocation for the BOE from 2 pages to 5 to allow for a 
comprehensive explanation of the staffing rationale that includes assumptions and/or 
constraints?

At this time, the Government does not intend to increase the page limit for this 
requirement.



LM-57 L.5.4.2.6, page 56 of 64 The solicitation states that, "The Offerors complete Cost/Price Proposal shall be 
submitted into the ASFI BRS system."  It appears that the acquisition.army.mil website, 
which is the host site for ASFI BRS, may not be functioning.  Is there a point of contact 
or email address that we may have to assist in ensuring contractors have access?  If 
ASFI BRS is not expected to be operational by 11/15/12, may prime offerors follow the 
instructions for  major subcontractors later in L.5.4.2.6 that says, "If the proposed 
teammate(s)/major subcontractor(s) wish to provide its cost information independently 
to the Government, it shall submit to the EAGLE mailbox: 
usarmy.RIA.acc.mbx.eagle@mail.mil"?

Please refer to Amendment 0003, Section L.1.7

LM-58 FAR 15.403-1, 15.804-3, 
page 19 of the RFP I-
145 (a) and Page 56, 
L.5.4.3.1 

Page 18, I-145 (a) states certified pricing data submission is not required but L.5.4.3.1 
states that pricing data should be submitted in accordance with Far clause 15.408, Table 
15-2. We hereby request a waiver of certified cost and pricing data in accordance with 
15.804-3 as price competition exists and the requirement of Table 15-2 is not required 
in our proposal submission. 

FAR 15.403‐5(b)(2) states, "When required by the contracting officer, data other than 
certified cost or pricing data may be submitted in the offeror’s own format unless the 
contracting officer decides that use of a specific format is essential for evaluating and 
determining that the price is fair and reasonable and the format has been described in 
the solicitation.  Certified Cost and Pricing Data is not required; however, the format in 
which Other Certified Cost and Pricing Data must be received shall be in accordance 
with FAR 15.408, Table 15‐2.  

LM-59 RFP, Section L, 
L.5.4.3.4, page 57

Please clarify what items would be included in "Class I" for ODCs that are not included 
in CLIN 0005 Other Direct Costs?  

"Class I" items are excluded as an ODC. Please refer to Section L, Paragraph L.5.4.3.4.

LM-60 Fort Benning SOL 
W52P1J-12-R-0115: 
Section L 5.5.1.2., ii

Would the Government clarify the expression "substantially different" as used in this 
paragraph, by defining it in terms of a "percentage range" (requested to explain 
differences in the small business comparison asked for)?

No, the Government will not define this in terms of a percentage.

LM-61 RFP Amend 002; pages 
6, 7 and 12; Para L.1.7, 
L.3.1, and L.5.4.2.6 

The referenced paragraph's instruct the offeror to submit it's proposal through ASFI 
BRS system.  However L.5.4.2.6 instructs "proposed teammates(s)/major 
subcontractor(s) wish to provide its cost information independently to the Government, 
it shall submit to the Eagle Mailbox:  usarmy.RIA.acc.mbx.eagle@mail.mil."  Please 
verify that this is correct and subcontractors do not have to use the ASFI BRS system 
and should sent this data to the EAGLE mail box.

Please refer to Amendment 0003, Section L.1.7

LM-62 RFP, Pg. 53 of 64, 
Section L.5.1.5

Section L, paragraph 5.1.5 states that Offerors shall submit proof of possession of a 
current U.S. Facility Clearance at the SECRET level IAW DoD 5220.22, National 
Industrial Security Program Operating Manual.  Please advise if the proof of possession 
of a current U.S. Facility Clearance at the SECRET level is required for a company 
facility onsite at Ft. Benning or an off site company facility.  Also, is the proof of 
possession of a current U.S. Facility Clearance at the SECRET level required of our 
subcontractors as well?

A SECRET facility at Fort Benning is not required.  A current U.S. Facility Clearance 
at the SECRET level is not required of subcontractors. 

LM-63 RFP, Pg. 19 of 64, 
Section I-141 (a) and 
RFP, Pg. 56 of 64, 
Section L.5.4.3.1

Section I-141 (a) states that submission of certified cost and pricing data is not 
required, however, Section L.5.4.3.1 states that The Offeror shall provide a detailed 
cost element proposal by CLIN submitted electronically in Microsoft Excel format, 
with working formulas - prepared in accordance with Federal Acquisition Regulation 
(FAR) 15.408 -- Solicitation Provisions and Contract Clauses Table 15-2, Instructions 
for Submitting Cost/Price Proposals When Certified Cost or Pricing Data Are 
Required.  Please advise if a certificate of certified cost and pricing data is required for 
the prime contractor and subcontractors.

FAR 15.403‐5(b)(2) states, "When required by the contracting officer, data other than 
certified cost or pricing data may be submitted in the offeror’s own format unless the 
contracting officer decides that use of a specific format is essential for evaluating and 
determining that the price is fair and reasonable and the format has been described in 
the solicitation.  Certified Cost and Pricing Data is not required; however, the format in 
which Other Certified Cost and Pricing Data must be received shall be in accordance 
with FAR 15.408, Table 15‐2.  

LM-64 RFP,  pg 51, Para L.3.1 RFP requires submission via ASFI, given recent connectivity issues has an alternate/ 
contingency process been established to facilitate timely proposal submissions?

Please refer to Amendment 0003, Section L.1.7

LM-65 RFP Section L, page 53, 
paragraph # L.4.2.5 and 
L.4.2.5.ii

Paragraphs L.4.2.5 and L.4.2.5.ii both have page limits of 25 pages. If an offeror 
submits 25 pages for Past Small Business participation (Realism), there would be no 
pages available for Attachment 0006 within the 25 pages available under L.4.2.5 Small 
Business Participation. Please clarify. 

Please refer to Amendment 0003, Section L.4.2.5



LM-66 Solicitation page # 52, 
Para. L.4.2.1.vii  

Will a current DSS FL 381-R letter meet this requirement? The 381-R is Acceptable.

LM-67 General Will the Government delineate their process for trade off analysis they will use for 
award selection?

Please refer to Section M, Paragraph M.3.4.

LM-68 General Will the Government delineate their cost realism process? Please refer to Section M, Paragraph M.4.3.1.
LM-69 Solicitation, page 52, 

L.4.2.3, I, and page 56, 
L.5.3.1.4

Please clarify that the Government does not need "Contract Reference Information" 
unless the offeror is providing an additional past performance contract for itself, a 
teammate, or a major subcontractor. 

In accordance with L.5.3.1.2, Offerors are afforded the opportunity to provide up to one 
additional past performance contract references for itself and each proposed teammate 
or major subcontractor, (beyond those provided with Offerors BOA proposal) but are 
not required.

LM-70 Solicitation, Page 63, 
Paragraph M.4.4.1.1 iii

 The RFP states that the USG will evaluate the extent to which offeror meets small 
business goals.  Please specify whether each socially economic category is a mandatory 
minimum requirement or if the percentages listed are overarching EAGLE contract 
goals.

The goals specified in Section M are specific to the Task Order.

LM-71 RFP Amend 0002, 
Reference to Para 
L.5.3.1.2

The RFP reference states that offerors are afforded the opportunity to provide up to one 
additional past performance contract reference for itself and each proposed teammate or 
major subcontractor.  If an offeror intends to use a major subcontractor for more that 
one specific area of the PWS, e.g. transportation freight and supply subsistence support, 
and these PWS areas are performed by the chosen subcontractor on two or more 
different past/current contracts, will the Government grant an exception to the RFP 
restricting just one contract citation per subcontractor by allowing the Prime to use the 
number of citations required to demonstrate that's its selected subcontractor has relevant 
experience is all PWS areas the Prime is intending to allocate work responsibility to 
that subcontractor?

No exception will be granted.  Offerors are afforded the opportunity to provide up to 
one additional past performance contract references for itself and each proposed 
teammate or major subcontractor, (beyond those provided with Offerors BOA proposal) 
but are not required.

LM-72 RFP, Pg. 54 of 64, Para. 
L.5.2.1.1.2; Attachment 
005 Cost/Price Matrix; 
and CDRL-PM-06-
Transition Plan.

To adequately determine transition costs, key tasks and schedule as required by the 
references, transition planners need to understand the level of support that will be 
provided by incumbent contractor. Level of support includes, for example, availability 
and/or limitations on the use of incumbent employees, access to facilities and data files, 
and the current plan for identifying backlog during the transition period. To facilitate 
transition planning, will the Government provide the current Transition-Out 
Plan (CDRL-PM-06) written by the incumbent LRC contractor at Fort Benning? 

This plan will not be provided.

LM-73 Amd 2, page 9, Para 
L.5.1.4

If subcontractors are used to fulfill subcontractor requirements and by definition are not 
major subcontractors (i.e. performing less than 20% of work ) are written consent 
letters required?

Letters of Consent only need to be submitted for major subcontractors IAW Section 
L.4.2.1.v.

LM-74 Solicitation page 52, 
paragraph L.4.2.2

Must each section of the document, i- iv, be uploaded as a separate file (e.g. 
Offeror_Name_Organizational_Diagram), or may the offeror combine into a single 
Volume/file (e.g. Offeror_Name_Technical) that is compliant with upload 
requirements?

Offeror can submit each document separately or combined into one document for the 
volume, as long as they are clearly labeled.

LM-75 Amd 2, page 9, Para 
L.5.1.4

If subcontractors are used to fulfill subcontractor requirements and by definition are not 
major subcontractors (i.e. performing less than 20% of work) are written consent letters 
required?

Letters of Consent only need to be submitted for major subcontractors IAW Section 
L.4.2.1.v.

LM-76 L.5.4.2.6, page 56 of 64 The solicitation states that, "The Offerors complete Cost/Price Proposal shall be 
submitted into the ASFI BRS system."  It appears that the acquisition.army.mil website, 
which is the host site for ASFI BRS, may not be functioning.  Is there a point of contact 
or email address that we may have to assist in ensuring contractors have access?  If 
ASFI BRS is not expected to be operational by 11/15/12, may prime offerors follow the 
instructions for  major subcontractors later in L.5.4.2.6 that says, "If the proposed 
teammate(s)/major subcontractor(s) wish to provide its cost information independently 
to the Government, it shall submit to the EAGLE mailbox: 
usarmy.RIA.acc.mbx.eagle@mail.mil"?

Please refer to Amendment 0004, Section L, Paragraph L.5.4.2.6



LM-77 Solicitation page #57, 
Para. L.5.4.3.5.3 a. i. - 
iii.

The Indirect Expense Rate requirement is for CY information. Can the government 
please explain what period they are looking for with the CY reference? Our Accounting 
system is on a Fiscal Year (FY) basis and so providing Calendar Year information 
would be inaccurate on a Cost Plus contract.

Please refer to Amendment 0004, Section L, paragraph L.5.4.3.5.3.a.

LM-78 Amendment 0003, Page 
13, Para. L.3.1 and Page 
18, Para. L.5.4.2.6

Para. L.3.1 states, "Offeror shall submit its proposal on CD-ROM in uncompressed 
files. "  Para. L.5.4.2.6 states, "The Offerors complete Cost/Price proposal shall be 
submitted into the ASFI BRS system…If the proposed teammate(s)/subcontractors(s) 
wish to provide its cost information independently to the Government, it shall submit 
its information on a CD-ROM..."  Please clarify whether the Offeror also needs to 
submit the technical proposal into ASFI BRS and whether the prime needs to submit its 
Cost/Price on CD-ROM as well as ASFI BRS.

Please refer to Amendment 0004, Section L, paragraph L.5.4.2.6

LM-79 Amendment 3, pg. 
18,L.5.4.2.6

The offerors complete cost/price proposal shall be submitted into the ASFI BRS 
system.  Is this correct?  L.1.7 says that proposals shall be either hand-delivered or 
mailed.

Please refer to Amendment 0004, Section L, paragraph L.5.4.2.6

LM-80 W52P1J-12-R-0115, 
MOD 0003,pg 12 Para 
L.1.7 and page 18 Para 
L.5.4.2.6 

Para L.1.7 discusses hand-delivery or mail of proposals. L.5.4.2.6 discusses submission 
of Cost/Price file into the ASFI BRS system.  Is the cost/price file to be submitted on a 
CD and also into the ASFI system?  Is the cost/price file the only document to 
submitted into ASFI?

Please refer to Amendment 0004, Section L, paragraph L.5.4.2.6

LM-81 Amendment 3, page 18, 
Paragraph L.5.4.3.5.3 a. 
i. -  Budgetary data for 
CY2013, CY2014, 
CY2015, CY2016, 
CY2017 

Since we are on a FY accounting system, will you accept this data by FY? Please refer to Amendment 0004, Section L, paragraph L.5.4.3.5.3a.

LM-82 Amendment 3, page 18, 
Paragraph L.5.4.3.5.3 a. 
ii. -  Year to date data for 
CY2012 

What data are you looking for?  Will FY year data be acceptable? Please refer to Amendment 0004, Section L, paragraph L.5.4.3.5.3a.

LM-83 Amendment 3, page 18, 
Paragraph L.5.4.3.5.3 a. 
iii.– Incurred cost Data 
for CY2010 and 
CY2011

What type of incurred cost data are you looking for?  We submit our Incurred Cost 
Proposals on a FY basis.  Will you accept FY data?

Please refer to Amendment 0004, Section L, paragraph L.5.4.3.5.3a.

LM-84 Amendment 003, Pg. 13 
of 24, Para. L.3.1; 
Amendment 003, Pg. 18 
of 24, Para. L.5.4.2.6

Please confirm if the cost/price proposal shall be submitted on CD-ROM and submitted 
into the ASFI BRS system.

Please refer to Amendment 0004, Section L, paragraphL.5.4.2.6

LM-85 RFP, Page 56, L.5.4.3.1 What is the level of PWS detailed required? In accordance with L.5.4.3.1, Offerors shall expand the cost detail to encompass the 
specific level necessary for the PWS costs.

LM-86 Task Order RFP, pg 61, 
Section M.4.1.1.i.4

Will the government provide additional information on how it will evaluate this 
element? 

Please refer to Amendment 0004, paragraphs L.5.2.1.1.1(iv) and M.4.1.1(i)(4)

LM-87 RFP, Section L, page 49, 
paragraph L.5.5.1.2(i)

In proving past SB participation, when citing contracts that are still on-going, the use of 
total contract value, assuming that to be the projected final value, may result in an 
inaccurate "total SB participation as a percentage of TCV" - offerors would be 
comparing an actual,  non-final number (SB participation to date) to a projected final 
number (TCV).  In circumstances where offerors are citing ongoing contracts, may we 
substitute "total funds expended to date" for "total contract value"?

No, the Offeror shall submit data based on total contract value as outlined in Section L, 
Paragraph L.5.5.1.2(i) and Attachment 0006, Contractor Participation Matrix.  Past 
small business participation will be evaluated in accordance with Section M, Paragraph 
M.4.4.1.2



LM-88 RFP, Section L, 
L.5.4.3.4, page 57

Please clarify what items would be included in "individual comfort items" for ODCs 
that are not included in CLIN 0005 Other Direct Costs?  

Those items desired by individual employees (excluding medically required items) that 
do not support the requirements of the effort (i.e. personal fans, foot rests, personal 
heaters, chair cushions)

LM-89 Solicitation, Page 56-57, 
Section  L.5.4.3.4 CLINs 
for ODCs; Attachment 
0005 Price Matrix

Referencing Attachment 0005, cells B12, B16, and B20 are labeled Labor. The 
Cost/Price Matrix spreadsheet Labor category does not indicate that ODCs not covered 
in the plug number can be included in the Labor dollars. Industry is trying to understand 
where to include ODCs other than what is called out in L.5.4.3.4. Request the 
Government define Labor to specify if it includes Labor costs and ODC costs not 
included in the ODC plug numbers.

The Government does not intend to allow recovery of those items excluded from the 
ODC definition.

LM-90 Solicitation, Page 56-57, 
Section  L.5.4.3.4 CLINs 
for ODCs; Attachment 
0005 Price Matrix

Request the Government provide a detailed listing of what is included in the Other 
Direct Costs plug numbers for CLIN 0005AA of Attachment 0005. This request is to 
ensure there are no duplicate costs.

Please refer to paragraph L.5.4.3.4.

LM-91 Solicitation, Page 56-57, 
Section  L.5.4.3.4 CLINs 
for ODCs; Attachment 
0005 Price Matrix

Request the Government advise if the plug numbers in CLIN 0005AA of Attachment 
0005 are NTE.

These are plug numbers for the purposes of evaluation only.

LM-92 RFP Section L.5.1.5.1 Section L.5.1.5.1 states “Absent an adequate accounting system, an offeror cannot be determined 
responsible under FAR part 9.104-5 and will be ineligible for award."  ACC-RI issued a “Pre-
Award Account System Survey Notice” to all BOA holders requesting submission of the SF-
1408 and supplemental information on accounting system by October 24, 2012.  The notice 
indicates “If the government determines that a pre-award survey of the BOA Holder’s 
accounting system is needed to determine adequacy, this office will submit a request to DCAA.  
DCAA will contact the BOA Holder’s task order POC to arrange for the survey.”  The recent 
announcement that a majority of Eagle TOs are planned to be cost reimbursable type contracts 
creates a concern for Limited Liability Company (LLC) BOA holders:  26% of large business are 
LLCs (10 of 38 awardees) and 32% of small businesses are LLCs (19 of 58 awardees).  Industry 
practice is for newly established LLCs to adopt the policies, procedures, and business systems of 
an LLC Member in order to meet the requirements under a cost reimbursable contract since 
newly established LLCs most likely have not undergone either a DCAA accounting system 
survey or a DCAA accounting system audit.  BOA holders cannot control if or when DCAA will 
complete a survey.  Companies may be preparing TO responses and making financial 
investments under the assumption that the Government will support TO award timeframes 
through timely review of the SF-1408 submissions, notifications of results, and/or DCAA 
Accounting Surveys. The Government’s first round of EAGLE TOs may limit competition by 
allowing only a subset of awardees who have previously received a DCAA audit (in support of 
current cost reimbursable work) or a DCAA Survey (in support of another proposal outside 
EAGLE) to be eligible for award. We have three questions:  
   1)  What is the Government's timeline for reviewing the SF-1408s and notifying the BOA 
holders if they are eligible for award?
   2)  What is the Government's timeline for notifying BOA holders if a DCAA Accounting 
System survey is necessary and if so, the date of DCAA Survey?  
   3)  Will the Government intends delay the award of EAGLE Cost Reimbursable TOs until all 
BOA Holders' accounting systems are determined  adequate through review of the SF-1408s or a 
DCAA Accounting Survey?

1) The Government has provided all the SF‐1408 submissions it received from BOA 
Holders to DCAA for determination of need of preaward survey. If a pre‐award survey 
is required, DCAA will be contacting the BOA Holder directly to facilitate the survey. 
It is the intent of the Government to have all the surveys completed prior to award of 
this task order.
2) If DCAA does not conduct a pre‐award survey it is because the BOA Holder has had 
a recent DCAA or DCMA review of its accounting system which showed it was 
adequate. When a pre‐award survey is conducted, DCAA will notify the BOA Holder 
upon completion of the survey of the BOA Holder's accounting system status.
3) Accounting system adequacy is determined via the responsibility determination 
made by the Contracting Officer prior to task order award. The intent of the DCAA 
pre‐award surveys is to eliminate any
task order delays awaiting this determination.  

LM-93 RFP Section L.5.4.3.4 This section defines the items that are included in the surrogate numbers for ODCs. 
Where are we to include our costs for ODCs that are not included in the surrogate 
numbers (e.g., commercial general liability insurance, annual physicals) since 
Attachment 0005 Cost - Price Matrix lists labor and fee as the only cost elements?

The Government does not intend to allow recovery of those items excluded from the 
ODC definition.



LM-94 Task Order RFP, Page 
47, Section L-9(b) and 
PWS, Page C-2-9, Para 
1.4.2

Task Order RFP section L-9(b) requires "offeror shall provide with its offer a written 
plan describing how it will continue to perform the essential contractor services listed 
in Attachment 0007, Mission Essential Contractor Services, dated 28 Aug 2012, during 
periods of crisis."  PWS Para 1.4.2, addresses CDRL PM-04, Contingency Plan and 
Mission Essential Personnel. This paragraph states "The complete contingency plan 
will be submitted to the government for acceptance /approval not later than 60 calendar 
days after award."  In most instances, how mission essential services will be continued 
are identified in the contingency plan for various scenarios, i.e., weather, strike, major 
illness/epidemic, etc.  Will the government please clarify if these two references are 
discussing the same plan, and if so, when is the plan due?

Please refer to Amendment 0003, paragraph L.4.2.2.i.

LM-95 Page 62, Paragraph 
M.4.4.2

To receive a rating of 100%, the Offeror’s proposal must meet the requirements and 
indicate an exceptional approach and understanding of the requirements.  Additionally, 
the strengths must far outweigh any weaknesses and risk of unsuccessful performance 
must be low. Sections L.4.2.5 and  M.4.4.1.2 do not appear to require the Offeror to 
discuss their understanding, approach or risk in  meeting the requirements, but rather 
call for the Offeror to demonstrate in a simple table the dollar and percent allotted to 
small business and to discuss actual past performance in achieving small business 
participation.  
Question:  It does not appear the Government’s evaluation criteria matches the 
requirements for this section.  Will the Government consider revising the evaluation 
criteria to match the requirements discussed in Section L L.4.2.5 and M.4.4.1.2?

Please refer to L.5.5.1.2 for submission instructions relative to Past Small Business 
Participation (Realism), which corresponds to paragraph M.4.4.1.2.

LM-96 Section L.5.4.3.3 Section L.5.4.3.3 states that the Staffing Matrix (Attachment 0002) shall include both 
total hours and associated FTE's, however Attachment 0002 only provides one column 
for FTE Count.  Could the government clarify and update Attachment 0002 to add a 
column for total hours to accommodate this requirement

Paragraph L.5.4.3.3 indicates that the staffing matrix should mirror the staffing detailed 
within the technical solution in the Offerors Attachment 0002.  It does not direct 
Offeror's to input an hourly rate in Attachment 0002.

Question # RFP Reference QUESTION ANSWER
PWS-1 PWS Paragraph 1.1.1, 

Section C-1, Page 1. 
Will the Government provide a CLIN for contractor estimated travel or provide a 
“plug” figure? If the contractor must estimate travel, will the Government provide 
estimated travel (time and locations)?

Please reference Section L, Paragraph 5.4.3.4 for those elements
included in Other Direct Costs.

PWS-2 PWS Paragraph 1.1.1, 
Section C-1, Page 1. 

What are the off-site locations and where are they located? Camp Rudder and Camp Merrill - refer to PWS

PWS-3 PWS Paragraph 1.6.2, 
Section C-1, Page 16

Will the Government provide current internal SOPs for each of these functional areas or 
will the contractor be required to develop SOPs?

Please refer to Amendment 0003, Exhibit CC - TE 3-005 Fort Benning External SOPs

PWS-4 PWS Paragraph 1.11.1, 
Section C-1, Page 22. 

Is the contractor responsible for maintaining the STAMIS systems that are used in the 
maintenance, supply and transportation functional areas?

Yes, refer to Tech Exhibit 3-004.

PWS-5 PWS, Section C-2 page 
9, paragraph 1.4.1.2

On average, how many days per year does the Garrison Commander declare the 
installation "closed" or road condition "red" or "black"?

On average, no more than one per year.

PWS-6 PWS, Section C-2 page 
13, paragraph 1.5.3.5 
and Section C-2 page 22, 
paragraph 1.10.10

Will the Government permit contractor use of government-owned computing systems 
for web-based timekeeping systems?

Yes, as long as no additional plug-ins are required to be installed.  Fort Benning utilizes 
Internet Explorer 7 or 8.  No additional equipment will be provided in addition to the 
GFE listing.   

PWS-7 PWS, Section C-2 page 
13, paragraph 1.5.3.5 
and Section C-2 page 22, 
paragraph 1.10.10

Will the Government permit contractor to connect contractor-owned computers to the 
government-owned network for web-based timekeeping systems?

No, only Government provided computers will be allowed in the Government network.  
The contractor will be responsible for providing their own line for contractor owned 
computer systems.

PWS SECTION 1-4 QUESTIONS



PWS-8 PWS, Section C-3 page 
7, paragraph 3.9

PWS states Government will provide various containers for recyclables (paper and 
cardboard, scrap metal, wood).  Will the Government provide pick up service of the 
recyclables or is the Contractor responsible for disposing of the materials?

The contractor is responsible for getting material to recyclable containers provided by 
the Government.

PWS-9 Attachment 0001 PWS, 
Section C – 3 Page 1, 
paragraph 3.1.2

Does this paragraph mean we must conduct the inventory 30 days prior or after the start 
of the contract?

30 days after the contract award date.

PWS-10 Attachment 0001-PWS, 
dated 07 October 2012, 
Section C-2, page 16, 
paragraph 1.6.2, and 
PWS Section C-3, page 
3, paragraph 3.3.3

Issue:  PWS paragraph 1.6.2 states, in part, “All external SOPs shall be made available 
to customers and the Government electronically.”  PWS paragraph 3.3.3 states, in part, 
“The Government will provide limited access to the existing Fort Benning Local Area 
Network (LAN) to include limited electronic mail (e-mail) capability. The number of 
active LAN drops and e-mail accounts required will be determined by the government.” 
Question:  Is it the intent of the Government to have Contactor external  SOPs posted to 
the Fort Benning Local Area Network?  If not, will the Government please clarify how 
the Contractor will comply with the portion of paragraph 1.6.2 requiring “shall be made 
available to customers and the Government electronically?”

Please refer to Amendment 0003, Exhibit CC - TE 3-005 Fort Benning External SOPs

PWS-11 Attachment 001 PWS, 
Section C-2 Page 2, Para 
1.1.3

"The contractor shall demilitarize or dispose of all unserviceable weapons parts in 
accordance with governing codes and regulations." Are commercial contracts locally 
available to melt parts or is this the contractors" responsibility to contract these 
requirements?  Is equipment in place to demil items that are not accepted for melting to 
meet all small arms disposal requirements?

1) PWS, Para 5.2.2.4 (not Para 5.1.3); The Government established and maintains a 
"Not Cost" to any party agreement with two foundries, one melts ferris metals, the other 
melts non-ferris (aluminum metals).                                                                     2) 
Should either (or both foundries) terminate existing agreement, equipment is in place to 
Demil weapons and all other commodities I/A/W regulations. 

PWS-12 Logistics Support 
Contract Performance 
Work Statement Para 1.1 
Introduction

The PWS introduction lists the Consolidated CONUS Replacement Center (CRC) as an 
Installation primary activity. Is there any workload specific to the level of effort 
required of the contractor to support the CRC. 

The CRC will not require any contractor support at this time; however, CRC workload 
will be in direct response to deployment of troops.  For proposal purposes the 
contractor should use zero workload / staffing at this time.

PWS-13 Section C-2, Paragraph 
1.1.4

How does the Government define "more serious issue"?  Further information about the Corrective Action Reports (CARs) and Contract 
Discrepancy Reports (CDRs) can be found in Section H, Paragraph H-05(b) of the 
solicitation.

PWS-14 Section C-3, Paragraph 
3.5.7

Please confirm that the safety and protective equipment will be purchased using the 
ODC CLIN.

Yes

PWS-15 Section C-3, Paragraph 
3.6.4

Please confirm that if the Government withdraws GFE the contractor will not be 
penalized during the Award Fee evaluation process for delays caused by GFE withdraw 
and time awaiting government direction on replacement.

Please refer to Amendment 0003, Section A, paragraphs 3) and 4)

PWS-16 Attachment_0001_PWS.
PDF; Page #20; 
Paragraph # 1.10.3 
Contractor’s Equipment 
Maintenance Program 
Plan

What LIS does the DOL use to monitor GFE/P that is not in SAMS-1E or PBUSE, that 
the contractor will have to include in our maintenance plan?  Is it a commercial system 
such as Maximo?

SAMS-1E and PBUSE are currently used.  There is no commercial system requirement.

PWS-17 PWS, Section C-3, Page 
3, Paragraph 3.3.3

Are non-Government (corporate) computers authorized to connect to this LAN? No. Corporate computers must have their own Internet connection

PWS-18 Section C-2, Paragraph 
1.3.3

Are their specific physical requirements the Government requires or is this the 
Contractor's judgment?

Specific physical requirements are based on the contractor's judgment.

PWS-19 Section C-2, Paragraph 
1.3.11

Please confirm that the random drug screening required after contract award will be an 
allowable cost to the contract.

No, the Government will not reimburse those items excluded from the ODC definition.  
Please refer to Section L, Paragraph 5.4.3.4.

PWS-20 Section C-2, Paragraph 
1.3.12

Will the Government assist in expediting non key contractor personnel clearances? No



PWS-21 Section C-2, Paragraph 
1.5.6

Request the government include the following statement "The contractors total liability 
for any lost, unauthorized use or duplication of keys will be limited to the value of the 
task order."

This statement will not be added to the PWS.

PWS-22 Section C-2, Paragraph 
1.7

Please confirm that the Contractor will be entitled to perform an Environmental 
baseline review during the transition in period and any issues or corrections will be 
addressed and corrected by the COR/CO prior to the start of the base period.

This is correct.

PWS-23 Section C-2, Paragraph 
1.7

To what extent is the Contractor responsible for dispositioning hazardous material?  Is 
there a on site central collection point that the Contractor will take the hazardous 
material/waste to for Government disposition?  Will the Government be transporting 
hazardous material/waste off base for disposal?

The contractor is only responsible for temporary storage of HAZMAT or HAZWASTE. 
The contractor is responsible for management of these sites IAW Federal, State, and 
Army regulations and local policy. 

PWS-24 Section C-3, Paragraph 
3.1.15

Request the statement "Excessive rates of loss (including damage, destruction or theft) 
of property or loss of a sensitive item is evidence that the contractor's property 
management practices are inadequate and may be determine a material breach of 
contract."  The term excessive is ambiguous.  If the contractor has a government 
approve property management system is that adequate?

If a contractor experiences an excessive rate of loss of property or loss of a sensitive 
item this may be evidence that the contractor's property management practices are 
inadequate even if the contractor has a government approved property management 
system.

PWS-25 PWS, Section C-2, Page 
23, Paragraph 1.11.2

Is the contractor able to establish their own internet circuit (via private ISP) to establish 
PMO (corporate) communications?

If so, can this be transmitted via wireless bridge to other locations on-camp and what 
frequency range is preferred?

Yes they can use a commercial ISP. Transmitting via a wireless bridge will depend on 
the frequency requirements.  Frequency will be provided after award.

PWS-26 Section C-3, page 2, 
paragraph 3.1.8.  

Keeping in mind that there is a very robust transition schedule that must be in place to 
meet the requirement for a full transition of this mission, is there any additional 
information that has not been provided in the technical exhibits that would make 
estimating process for assuming this mission clearer?  For example, are hand receipts 
going to be frozen during the inventory process? Is there information available that 
provides a clearly defined location of the items that are listed on the government 
provided equipment list? Is the ASL all in one location?  Is the contractor required to 
complete a 100% inventory of the CIF and CIIP?    

No additional information will be provided prior to contract award.

PWS-27 Section C-2, Paragraph 
1.3.2.1

Is the Occupational Reliability Program and required CDRL Deliverable?  What is 
considered a suitable ORP program?  Request the statement "failure to establish and 
maintain a suitable ORP will be grounds for negative contract actions up to and 
including termination. "  The term suitable is ambiguous given there is no guidance on 
what an acceptable ORP constitutes.

No, it is not a deliverable.  Offerors must determine the requirements of each position 
(training, education, probity, technical competence, experience requirements) and 
devise its own program to ensure all employees are meet those requirements.  

PWS-28 Section C-3, Paragraph 
3.1.15

How will the COR or government property administrator determine if a contractor's 
property management practices are inadequate?  If the contractor has a Government 
approved property management system is that sufficient?

The Government will utilize FAR clause 52.245-1 to determine adequate property 
management practices. Contractors must have a management system that properly 
tracks, reports and safeguards government property using PBUSE.   

PWS-29 Fort Benning CDRL PM-
09, Quality Control Plan, 
block 16 (Remarks)

The Government states "Block 12 - Draft with proposal." However, there is no mention 
of a Quality Control Plan as part of the Offeror's Proposal in Section L of the RFP. Will 
the Government consider submittal of the Contractor's Quality Control Plan NLT 30 
calendar days after contract performance start date?

Please refer to revised CDRLs in Amendment 0005.  The Quality Control Plan is a 
CDRL (PM-09) required from the successful contractor after contract award.

PWS-30 W52P1J-12-R-0115
Performance Work 
Statement, Section C-2 
Page 4, Paragraph 
1.3.2.1

In this paragraph, it states that the Government has determined key and essential 
positions with minimum experience, education and or credential requirements that will 
be required.  It then states that the contractor should identify which positions are key.  
To maintain consistency with the Government's requirements for known key positions, 
will the government please identify which positions are considered key?

Please refer to revised PWS in Amendment 0005



PWS-31 W52P1J-12-R-0115
Performance Work 
Statement, Section C-2 
Page 5, Paragraph 
1.3.2.1.1

In this paragraph, it states that the Government has determined specified non-key 
positions with minimum experience and knowledge that will be required.  It then states 
that the contractor should identify specified non-key positions. To maintain consistency 
with the Government's requirements for known non-key positions, will the government 
please identify which positions are considered non-key?

Please refer to revised PWS in Amendment 0005

PWS-32 PWS, Section C-2, Page 
4, Paragraph 1.3.2.1 and 
Page 8, Paragraph 1.3.12

Para 1.3.12 of the PWS states that Key positions will possess current SECRET security 
clearances at the time of award.  This is contrary to Para 1.3.2.1 Key Positions that 
states that contractor personnel that are in or expected to fill a key position will have a 
Secret security clearance prior to the start of the contract/start of work.

Please clarify if key positions must be cleared at time of award or start of work?

Please refer to revised PWS in Amendment 0005

PWS-33 PWS, Page C-1-15, Para 
1.6.1

The QCP is due 30 days after start of work.  Does "start of work" mean start of 
transition-in or start of evaluated period of performance?

Please refer to revised CDRLs in Amendment 0005.

PWS-34 Attachment 0001-PWS, 
dated 07 October 2012, 
Section C-2, page 17,  
paragraph 1.6.3

Issue: PWS paragraph 1.6.3 states, in part, “The contractor shall provide responses to 
the Division Chief / COR within 2 business days after receiving an ICE comment from 
a supported activity. The contractor shall provide a response to all ICE comments 
provided to them by the Government or supported activity.”

Question:  Shall the Contractor provide responses to all ICE comments, both positive 
and negative, or provide response only to negative ICE comments? 

Please refer to revised PWS in Amendment 0005

PWS-35 PWS, page 5 Para 
1.3.2.1 and PWS, page 
8, Para 1.3.12

Para 1.3.2.1 indicates that key positions will have a secret security clearance prior to 
START OF CONTRACT/START OF WORK. Para 1.3.12 indicates key positions will 
possess current secret clearance at TIME OF AWARD.  Question:  Which is correct?

Please refer to revised PWS in Amendment 0005

PWS-36 PWS, Page 8, Paragraph 
1.3.12

"The government will not sponsor Interim clearances." Does this statement mean that 
the government will not allow a person with an Interim SECRET clearance to work in a 
position requiring a SECRET clearance? 

Correct.

PWS-37 Attachment 001 PWS, 
Section C-2 Page 2, Para 
1.1.3

"Referenced publications, regulations, and guidance in this PWS provide specific 
performance metrics (e.g. AR 750-1: maintenance turnaround time (TAT)); the 
contractor must adhere to those metrics unless specific relief has been given, in writing, 
by the Contracting Officer.  Failure to meet metrics such as work exceeding the times 
stated in the Maintenance Allocation Chart may result in a corrective action request 
(CAR), contract discrepancy report (CDR), loss of fee, cure notice or termination."  
Will written relief be provided based upon Technical Inspection or when the work is 
performed?

Please refer to revised PWS in Amendment 0005

PWS-38 PWS; C-2/11; 1.4.7.1 CDRL ITD-01 is called Transportation Monthly Workload Report. However, CDRL 
ITD-01 is called Monthly Feeder Report on: Page C-2/21; 1.10.6 AND C-5/55; 5.20.3 
AND C-5/56; 5.21.10 AND C-5/61; 5.28.2 AND in the RFP page 41; Section J.

Please refer to revised PWS in Amendment 0005

PWS-39 PWS, Section C-2 page 
16, 1.6.1

The Government states that "The plan must address how the contractor will achieve 
ISO compliance within 180 days of start of work." Will it be left up to the Contractor to 
determine the effective implementation of the ISO 9001:2008 standard requirements or 
will the Government provide the assessment utilizing certified ISO9001:2008 auditors?

The contractor is responsible for achieving and maintaining compliance to ISO 
9001:2008 (certification is not required). The Government retains the right to perform 
compliance audits throughout the contract period.

PWS-40 PWS Para 1.5.3, 
sentence  #4 on page #12

says:  “The contractor will maintain a signed non‐disclosure agreement for each 
employee, available to the government upon request.”  Does the Government has a pre-
approved NDA that it wants each employee to sign that outlines the specifics of the 
information not to be disclosed?

No.



PWS-41 PWS, Section C-2, Page 
8, Paragraph 1.3.13

The requirement states that non-cleared personnel will be processed for a CAC and 
must receive a Favorable NACI.  This will require the completion of an SF85P, 
Questionnaire for Public Trust Positions and two FD 254s, Fingerprint cards.

Will the Government provide the method/procedures for processing the NACI?

This will be provided at contract award.

PWS-42 Performance Work 
Statement, Page 6, 
Section C-3, Paragraph 
3.8.7

As stated in the RFP: "" The government MAY provide scheduled custodial 
services…..." It is assumed that the government WILL provide all custodial services at 
all government provided facilities utilized by the contractor in support of this contract.  
Is that correct?

No, Contractor is responsible for providing custodial services for the facilities operated 
by the Contractor, with the exception of Buildings 6 and 2411.

PWS-43 Attachment 0001 PWS, 
Section C – 3 Page 3, 
paragraph 3.3.3

Can the USG LAN and computers be used to conduct company business? Yes, as long as no additional plug-ins are required to be installed. Fort Benning utilizes 
Internet Explorer 7 or 8. No additional equipment will be provided in addition to the 
GFE listing.

PWS-44 Attachment 0001 PWS, 
Section C – 2 Page 23, 
paragraph 1.11.2

Does this paragraph prohibit the installation of a company computer network? No, but this will be at the Contractor's expense.

PWS-45 Section C-2, Paragraph 
1.7

What types of hazardous materials with Contractor personnel be handling?  Request the 
Government provide a listing of the hazardous materials the Contractor will be 
handling.

Contractor will handle only those hazardous materials required to perform PWS 
workload.  

PWS-46 Section C-3, Paragraph 
3.1.1

Please confirm that the Government will be providing working space, equipment, 
supplies and network access for contractor personnel.

Correct, in accordance with the Government Furnished Facilities, Services and 
Equipment listings, as referenced in Tech Exhibits 3-001, 3-002, and 3-003.  Network 
access will not be provided for contractor furnished computers.

PWS-47 Section C-3, Paragraph 
3.1.3

Paragraph 3.1.3 indicated "The contractor shall accept government provided on-hand 
Automated Information Systems (AIS) hardware and software without exception."  
Please confirm that if this government  AIS hardware/software is not operational, the 
government will replace the hardware/software and the contractor will not be penalized 
for any delay awaiting this replacement AIS hardware/software.

The equipment is operational.  If equipment not operational, the contractor will not be 
penalized for delay as a result of the non-operational status of the GFE provided.

Question # RFP Reference QUESTION ANSWER
PWS5-1 PWS, Section C-5 page 

6, paragraph 5.3.10.1
Is the web-based system an existing government developed system or will the 
contractor develop it after contract award?

It is an existing Government System.

PWS5-2 RFP page 2, Section A, 
paragraph c)

Is 60 days the correct Transition period? Yes, refer to PWS paragraph 1.4.6.

PWS5-3 PWS Paragraph 5.12.4, 
Section C-5, pg 26,  
Individual Chemical 
Equipment Management 
Program (ICEMP) 
Warehouse Operations.

ICEMP Workload for this PWS paragraph is not provided. Will the USG provide 
unique workload for the tasks to be performed from this area of the PWS?

Yes

PWS5-4 PWS, Section C – 5 
Page 55, Paras 
C.5.20.2.1-C.5.20.2.3; 
Section C – 5 Page 62, 
Paras C.5.28.9-
C.5.28.9.2

Regarding the Contractor requirements at the 3 off-site TMP locations (Sand Hill, 
Camp Frank D. Merrill and Camp James E. Rudder). Please clarify if the Contractor  
will be operating and staffing those TMPs or a customer using vehicles and equipment 
from those locations to support the requirements defined in PWS paras C.5.28.9-
C.5.28.9.2?

The contractor will be staffing those TMPs

PWS SECTION 5 QUESTIONS



PWS5-5 Attachment 001 PWS, 
Section C-5 Page 10, 
Para 5.8.1.2.1

The contract shall input status updates daily but no later than 1200 each workday. Is the 
requirement to input the data the same or the following workday?

Status updates must be as close to "real time" as possible, especially in the case of jobs 
moving from final inspection to ready  for customer pickup but, in no case will a status 
update be delayed beyond 1200 the next day.  

PWS5-6 Attachment 001 PWS, 
Section C-5 Page 1, Para 
5.1.3

"The LRC MMD workload is also affected by the various supported programs that 
require on-site maintenance support such as unit maintained equipment (UME) where 
the LRC MMD is required to support deployed units within their respective motor 
pools in order to perform field level maintenance."  Please provide the number of 
Maintenance Support teams required to support this workload.

Maintenance support teams required to support UME is based on equipment location 
and densities, UME program was very recently established - MMD is not currently 
supporting any UME requirement but, contractor must be aware this could become a 
requirement.

PWS5-7 Attachment 001 PWS, 
Section C-5 Page 2, Para 
5.1.3.2

"Additionally, the contractor shall establish customer service centers, which will be 
described in its external maintenance SOP, for turn-in and pickup of equipment and 
Work Order status reporting." How many customer service centers are required under 
this contract?

The number of customer service centers depends on the contractor's approach in order 
to task organize to achieve efficiency.  All MMD shop hours are 0800 to 1630, in 
addition, CCEP must be able to issue & receipt equipment from 0600 to 1800.  For 
amount of turn-ins and pickups - Please refer to TE 6-016.

PWS5-8 Attachment 001 PWS, 
Section C-5 Page 6, Para 
5.4.4

Does the CCEP do field repair on weapons and Communications-Electronic equipment 
or is it evacuated to DOL Maintenance?  If evacuated are the work orders included in 
the work orders listed on Final TE 6-013 Material Maintenance Workload Projection?

1) The CCEP is required to complete Field Level Inspections/Repairs on all equipment 
listed on TE 6-010. During High OPTEMPO periods some equipment can be passed 
back to the MMD (Mata).                                                                                            2) 
Yes - Pass Back (evacuated) work order density is included in TE 6-013 

PWS5-9 Attachment 001 PWS, 
Section C-5 Page 2, Para 
5.1.3.2

Per paragraph "Additionally, the contractor shall establish customer service centers, 
which will be described in its external maintenance SOP, for turn-in and pickup of 
equipment and Work Order status reporting."  How many customer service centers are 
required, what are operational hours, what is expected amount of turn-ins and pickups, 
and is this just for CCEP year long tally equipment?

The number of customer service centers depends on the contractor's approach in order 
to task organize to achieve efficiency.  All MMD shop hours are 0800 to 1630, in 
addition, CCEP must be able to issue & receipt equipment from 0600 to 1800.  For 
amount of turn-ins and pickups - Please refer to TE 6-016.

PWS5-10 PWS, Section C-5 Are all represented workers on this contract members of the Columbus Metal Trades 
Council Union?  If not, will the government provide any other CBAs that could affect 
bidders' proposals?

The applicable CBA is provided at Attachment 0008.

PWS5-11 PWS 5.2.2.3 PWS States: "Range Support Teams: The contractor shall be able to provide up to 3 
Range Support Trucks with Field Level maintenance repairmen from MATA 
simultaneously on scheduled workdays or nights/non-duty days at customer request 
when approved by the COR. Personnel providing this range support must be thoroughly 
familiar and properly trained on the specific type of weapons system they are expected 
to repair/inspect." What is the projected workload for this requirement, including type 
system, density, and number of days/week? 

Historically; between 1-2 Range Support Teams each work day, with surge capacity to 
3 Range Support Teams. Team will be required to support all individual & crew served 
type weapons.

PWS5-12 PWS 5.2.2.10 The contractor shall repair, store, account for, inspect and transport equipment 
containing radioactive material. The contractor shall establish and maintain a Radiation 
Safety Program to include a written SOP to comply with, AR 700-64, DA PAM 385-
24, and other applicable ARs, TBs, or OSHA publications for protection and operating 
procedures within MMD for the proper repair, storage, and transportation of equipment 
containing radioactive material. What is the projected workload for this requirement? 

Workload for radioactive items is not separated from the existing small arms weapons 
repair workload data.  The contractor will be required to properly handle, report and 
repair items that may contain radioactive material.  This is normally within the small 
arms repair work section. 

PWS5-13 PWS 5.11 Supply 
Support Services Work 
Scope

Is the contractor responsible for performing full SARSS 2 processing cycles and duties 
or will the contractor have a Net term to perform expediting and other item 
management tasks?

No, this is a coordination and execution function only.

PWS5-14 PWS 5.12 CIF 
Workload

Is the Main Post CIF the only CIF or is there a satellite or remote Forward Issue / Turn-
in Point (FITIP)? 

Main post only.  There are no remote or satellite sites.

PWS5-15 PWS 5.12 CIF 
Workload

If there is a satellite or remote FITIP, where is it located? Main post only.  There are no remote or satellite sites.

PWS5-16 PWS 5.12 CIF 
Workload

If there is a remote FITIP, what are its hours of operation? Main post only.  There are no remote or satellite sites.



PWS5-17 PWS 5.12.2 New OCIE 
Fielding Support 
Workload

Please provide the workload for the OCIE Fielding Support such as: number of items 
warehoused, number of new OCIE issued to individuals and in bulk, number of uploads 
of Rapid Fielding Initiative (RFI) issues and turn-ins, and number of hand receipts 
maintained for RFI?

Please refer to TE 4-003

PWS5-18 PWS; C-5, Page 7; 
Paragraph 5.5.1.

The contractor shall perform Allied Trades tasks required for the repair or modification 
of tactical or commercial equipment and shall be required to make items/materiel used 
for repair or other purposes. Tasks include but are not limited to welding, machining, 
equipment painting, and body repair. All repairs must be in accordance with AR 750-1; 
applicable TM; generally acceptable commercial methods and industry best practices. 
What is the workload for this allied trades requirement: how many items, by type and 
scope of work, must be repaired or modified annually? 

Please refer to TE 6-013 Allied trades Work Order & Pieces of Equipment

PWS5-19 PWS; C-5, Page 7; 
Paragraph 5.5.2.

The contractor shall perform welding and welding inspection operations necessary to 
fulfill maintenance and fabrication requirements on a variety of  ferrous and non-ferrous 
metals to include but not limited to steel, aluminum, cast iron, nickel, brass, sheet 
metal, and ballistic armor plating of various alloys. The contractor shall ensure welders 
are qualified and welding inspectors are certified in accordance with American Welding 
Society (AWS) standards for the equipment and material they are utilizing. What is the 
workload for this allied trades requirement: how many items, by type and scope of 
work, must be repaired or modified annually? 

Please refer to TE 6-013 Allied trades Work Order & Pieces of Equipment

PWS5-20 PWS; C-5, Page 7; 
Paragraph 5.5.3.

The contractor shall perform fabrication using metal machining operations including 
but not limited to the operation of milling machines, shapers, metal brakes, lathes, 
grinders, shears, and drills in order to machine ferrous and non-ferrous materials such 
as steel, copper, aluminum, cast iron, nickel, brass, and other alloys. The contractor 
shall maintain a minimum of one person certified in accordance with ANSI/ASNT CP-
189 (Standard for Qualification and Certification of NDT Personnel) to a minimum 
level of "Limited Level II" in destructive and non-destructive testing. What is the 
workload for this requirement; how many historical or projected fabrication  jobs by 
types per year?

Please refer to TE 6-013 Allied trades Work Order & Pieces of Equipment

PWS5-21 Attachment 1, PWS 
Section C-5, page 3, 
paragraph 5.2.2.5  

Will the government provide the workload for this PWS section?  Please refer to TE-013 "COTS Lawn Equipment", also refer to TE 6-019

PWS5-22 Attachment 1, PWS 
Section C-5, page 3, 
paragraph 5.2.2.5  

Where is this work to be priced or is it priced when Government requests it? Assuming the question is asking about work ordered repair costs, those are computed 
and entered into SAMS-IE based on Government approved shop rates.

PWS5-23 Section C-5, Paragraph 
5.18

What type of aircraft will the Contractor be performing refueling/defueling?  How often 
will the Contractor be needed to perform fueling and defueling operations?  Is the 
Contractor required to interface with a third party fuel delivery company to get fuel to 
the base locations?

Please refer to the first tab of TE 4-005.

PWS5-24 Performance 
Requirements Summary 
(PRS), Page 15, Section 
C-5 PRS, PWS 
paragraph 5.1.4

PRS PWS paragraph 5.1.4 references Technical Exhibits 5-4-010, 5-4-012, and 5-4-
013.  Please provide Technical Exhibits 5-4-010, 5-4-012, and 5-4-013.

PWS Para 5.1.4 Does not reference any of the TE's mentioned

PWS5-25 PRS, Page 15, Section C-
5 PRS, PWS paragraph 
5.2.2.2 & 5.3.1

PRS PWS paragraph 5.2.2.2 references Technical Exhibit 5-4-005.  Please provide 
Technical Exhibit 5-4-005.

PWS Para 5.2.2.2 Does not reference TE 5-4-005 

PWS5-26 RFP - general  Is workload data consolidated for all sites?  For example, the TMP data is one element 
and there are two TMPs.

Yes



PWS5-27 PWS, Section C-5, Page 
7, Paragraph 5.5.4

Chemical Agent Resistant Coating (CARC) Painting - The contractor assumes paint 
booths currently in place meet all Federal, State, Army, requirements to include proper 
mechanical ventilation and waste stream collection.
Please verify?

Yes - the paint booth is relatively new & meets all requirements. Primary CARC being 
applied is "Water based".

PWS5-28 PWS, Section C–5, Page 
7, Paragraph 5.5.4

Contractor assumes CARC paint booth(s) are equipped with breathing air apparatus to 
include air hose connection points inside booth.
Please verify?

Yes 

PWS5-29 PWS, Section C–5, Page 
7, Paragraph 5.5.4

Contractor assumes air compressors currently in place provide grade D breathing air as 
required per OSHA 1910.
Please verify?

Yes

PWS5-30 PWS, Section C–5, Page 
7, Paragraph 5.5.4

Contractor assumes sand blast facilities currently in place meet all applicable 
governmental regulations.
Please verify?

Yes

PWS5-31 Technical Exhibit 5-008 
Post Shuttle Bus

Please clarify sequence in which the shuttle schedule works, top to bottom or left to 
right?

Top to Bottom, next column to right, Top to Bottom, etc.

PWS5-32 Technical Exhibit 3-003 
Government Furnished 
Vehicle

Technical exhibit 3-003 identifies 128 buses and technical exhibit 5-008 workload data 
Post Shuttle Bus Service is only for one bus route and Technical exhibit 5-009 
workload data Sand Hill Medical Shuttle Stop is a one-bus mission.

Will the USG please provide workload data to support the entire bus fleet.

Additional information will not be provided.  Please refer to TE 5-002.

PWS5-33 Technical Exhibits 6-
013, 6-012 and 06-015

Request the USG please provide historical work order repair times by each major end 
item.

Historical work order repair times will not be provided.

PWS5-34 Technical Exhibit 6-012
Annual CCEP Tally 
Workload

TE states 617,175 total pieces of equipment were repaired at a weekly average of 
11,869.

What repairs were performed and what is the historical work order repair times?

Furthermore, please provide an equipment breakdown by type of Commo-Electronic 
and Accessories, i.e.: # of radios by nomenclature, number of night vision devices, etc.  
This information is required in order to properly staff this section with the appropriate 
skill sets.

1) TE 6-012 doesn't articulate any maintenance repairs. It merely presents "Annual" 
Tally (hand receipt) densities.                                                                    2) TE 6-010 
should be used to determine equipment commodities and densities in order to 
determine appropriate skill sets in accordance with the Offeror's approach.                                                                                                                                       
3) Repairs performed is not available.

PWS5-35 Technical exhibit 6-015
Miscellaneous 
Maintenance Workload 
Data

Attachment states "the number of MWO's the Materiel Maintenance Activity performed 
or handled administratively while another activity performed the work was:".

Request the USG please provide the total number of MWO administratively processed 
and also provide the historical workload for the MWO's that were applied by the 
Materiel maintenance Activity.  In order to properly staff the required skill sets and 
densities it is imperative industry knows the level of effort required to ensure MWO's 
are properly applied.

TE 6-015 articulates the total magnitude of MWO's that are tracked administratively.  
The MMD is responsible for the entire "Installation" when reporting/researching/and 
ensuring compliance with MWO's. From May 2011 thru April 2012, the number of 
MWOs the Materiel Maintenance Activity actually performed, or handled 
administratively while another activity performed the work as identified in TE 6-015. 



PWS5-36 PWS, Section C-5, Page 
9, Paragraph 5.7.1

The requirement states "The contractor shall perform Shop Supply services in order to 
attain materiel required to support the IMMD mission. Tasks include but are not limited 
to requisitioning, tracking requisition statuses, conducting follow-up actions, receiving 
supplies, verifying accuracy of shipments, reporting discrepancies, storing and 
maintaining accountability of CL II, III, IV, VII, and IX items, performing inventories, 
and issuing supplies.  Perform in accordance with AR 750-1,  AR 710-2, AR 735-11-2, 
AR 725-50, DA Pam 710-2-2, AR 740-1, AR 735-5, AR 710-1, AR 710-3, DA Pam 
710-7, AR 710-3, Inventory Management; DA Pam 710-2-1, FEDLOG and  LIS user’s 
manual."

Request the USG please provide the current shop stock listing for the IMMD.

A Shop stock listing will not be provided.                                                                            
1) MMD Bench Stock Lines: 1307, value $236.8K                                                                     
2) MMD Shop Stock Lines: 649, value $350.9K

PWS5-37 PWS, Section C-5, Page 
6, Paragraph 5.4.2

The requirement states: "The Contractor shall maintain 24-hour security to monitor the 
perimeter and facilities.  A closed circuit television system and sensor system is to be 
used.  The security force will be responsible for monitoring and verifying authorization 
for entry.  In the event of an intruder, security will ensure all doors are secure and the 
PMO, COR and IMMO are  notified".

Is the closed circuit television system already in place and will it be provided to 
successful offeror?

Yes and yes

PWS5-38 PWS  Section C-5 pg. 
26, Para 5.12.5 

This Para states; "The Contractor shall receive, store, safeguard, issue, ship, research, 
and account for all weapons assigned to the Main CIF in accordance with AR 190-11, 
AR 190-13, AR 190-50, AR 710-2, AR 735-5, and DA Pam 710-2-1."    Question: This  
describes the  "Main CIF" is there another CIF that is part of this solicitation?  If so  are 
we responsible for it's operation?  Where is it? What is it's function?  Is there workload 
data?  Please clarify.

There is only one CIF.

PWS5-39 PWS-  Section C-5 Page 
26,  Para 5.12.2 

This paragraph states "The contractor shall provide new OCIE Fielding Support 
services to include: warehousing; conducting or assisting Program Executive Office 
(PEO) Soldier in issuing new OCIE directly to individuals or in bulk to units; 
uploading Rapid Fielding Initiative (RFI) issues and turn-ins in ISM and, maintaining 
hand receipt records".       Question: Is there workload data for the RFI program? Will 
this be provided?

Please refer to TE 4-003.  These are included in the total workload numbers.  Workload 
for RFI is 7,500 issues per year. Turn-ins are 6,500.  

PWS5-40 PWS  Section C-5 Page 
26, Para 5.12.4 
Individual Chemical 
Equipment Management 
Program (ICEMP) 
Warehouse Operations.

Question:  Is there workload data for the ICEMP program? Will this be provided? This was provided in Amendment 0003, TE 4-029.

PWS5-41 PWS Paragraph 5.5.4, 
Section C – 5 Page 7 

The PWS states to properly prepare and paint supported equipment and components as 
required  to perform materiel maintenance to include sand blasting.  Will the 
Government provide the workload  (Historical SAMS data) to estimate this 
requirement?

Refer to Amendment 0001, TE 6-013A for workload data.  

PWS5-42 PWS Paragraph 5.5.1, 
Section C – 5 Page 7

The PWS states to provide Allied Trades tasks required for the repair or modification 
of tactical or commercial equipment and shall be required to make items/materiel used 
for repair or other purposes. Will the Government provide workload  (Historical SAMS 
data) to estimate this requirement?

Refer to Amendment 0001, TE 6-013A for workload data.  



PWS5-43 PWS Paragraph 5.16.7, 
Section C – 5 Page 30

The PWS states that the "contractor shall handle repairable items to include 
management of receipts of repairable items…" but there is no historical workload that 
identifies repairable items in the SSA. Repairable items are not included in the TE 4-
003 Supply Workload Data.  Will the Government provide the historical workload data 
for these repairable items?

TE 4-003 is inclusive of repairable items.  

PWS5-44 PWS Paragraph 5.16.8, 
Section C – 5 Page 30

The PWS states that the contractor shall operate the vehicle and equipment (Class VII) 
storage yard for track and wheeled vehicles and other Class VII equipment. Class VII 
equipment density and type for the storage yard is not included in the TE 4-003 Supply 
Workload Data. Will the Government provide the historical workload for the Class VII 
equipment storage yard?

TE 4-003 is inclusive of the Class VII equipment storage yard.  

PWS5-45 PWS 5.27 What is the programmed movement requirement, types of cargo to be transported, 
locations of supported activities, and availability of MHE at customer locations?

The Installation Freight Office does not deliver freight on the installation, except for 
extremely rare situations.  All inbound and outbound freight shipments either come to 
or leave from by a Commercial Line Haul Vendor.  The Freight Office arranges such 
shipments and can assist in the loading or off-loading of cargo to or from the 
Commercial Vehicle.  It has sufficient MHE to do this.  Workload data for the Freight 
Office is in TE 5-002.

PWS5-46 PWS 5.26 Is there a rail blocking and bracing material summary listing? No, this is a Unit/ Customer requirement to provide material and bring same to the rail-
head.  The contractor may advise and sometimes assist in the use of this material.

PWS5-47 PWS 5.21 Are the below buildings in the same location?
• 5.21.9 The contractor shall operate, manage, coordinate, and provide support for the 
Air Deployment/Redeployment Center (ADRC) Complex, buildings 2411, 2409, 2448, 
and 2424 for departing and arriving flights both military and commercial, and for 
events and activities directed and/or approved by the PCO.  

Yes.  Bldg 2411 is the terminal with Bldgs 2409 and 2424 a few hundred feet away.  
Bldg 2448 is the tiny vehicle scale building and it's a few more hundred feet away from 
the terminal.

PWS5-48 PWS 5.24 What Materials Handling Equipment (MHE) will be provided as Government 
Furnished Equipment (GFE)?
• 5.24.4 The contractor shall operate, maintain and perform organizational maintenance 
on MHE as required to reposition or retrieve containers as required.

All GFE is in TE 3-002.

PWS5-49 https://www.benning.ar
my.mil/garrison/dol/

IS the CRC Transportation mission Located at BLDG # 4713, 10480 Elcaney Ave still 
a requirement or did CRC at Fort Benning close down. 

The CRC transportation mission is not a part of this requirement.

PWS5-50 PWS  5.4 Section C-5            
pp. 6-7

Question:  Is the contractor responsible to provide security/access control to the 
Crescenz area?

Yes - During normal working hours.

PWS5-51 PWS, Section C.5.28.9, 
Pg 62; and Final TE 5-
002 Transportation 
Workload Data CY 
2011and2012, "TMP" 
spreadsheet; 

The PWS reference states "The contractor shall provide bus/truck and driver support to 
meet authorized requirements for the Installation and Remote Camps as approved by 
the PCO, COR or designated representative."  Will the Government provide further 
clarity to the Final TE 5-002 Transportation Workload Data CY 2011and2012, "TMP" 
spreadsheet, "Number of Scheduled Services Passengers" metric as to mission type 
(e.g. bus, truck, van), percentage of Contractor-operation, vehicle type (e.g. 24-pax bus, 
44-pax bus, 80-pax "Cattle Car", van) and duration (e.g. one-way trips, round trips, all-
day dedicated lift)?

This information is not available. 

PWS5-52 PWS, Section C.5.28.9, 
Pg 62; and Final TE 5-
002 Transportation 
Workload Data CY 
2011and2012, "TMP" 
spreadsheet; 

Will the Government provide further clarity to the Final TE 5-002 Transportation 
Workload Data CY 2011and2012, "TMP" spreadsheet, "Vehicles Actually Used for 
POI Mission Support" metric as to vehicle type (e.g. 24-pax bus, 44-pax bus, 80-pax 
"Cattle Car", van), percentage of Contractor-operation,  and duration (e.g. one-way 
trips, round trips, all-day dedicated lift)?

This information is not available. 

https://www.benning.army.mil/garrison/dol/
https://www.benning.army.mil/garrison/dol/


PWS5-53 PWS, Section C.5.28.9, 
Pg 62; and Final TE 5-
002 Transportation 
Workload Data CY 
2011and2012, "TMP" 
spreadsheet; 

Will the Government provide further clarity to the Final TE 5-002 Transportation 
Workload Data CY 2011and2012, "TMP" spreadsheet, "Vehicles Actually Used for 
"Non-POI" Mission Support" metric as to vehicle type (e.g. 24-pax bus, 44-pax bus, 80-
pax "Cattle Car", van), percentage of Contractor-operation,  and duration (e.g. one-way 
trips, round trips, all-day dedicated lift)?

This information is not available. 

PWS5-54 PWS, Section C-5 Page 
6, paragraph 5.4.2

Are the intrusion detection system and closed circuit video system existing GFE 
systems or will the contractor need to provide them?

No, these are provided.  Intrusion protection is part of the facility.  

PWS5-55 PWS, Section C – 5 
Page 55, Para 
C.5.20.2.2; Section C – 
5 Page 63, Paras 
C.5.28.14; TE 5-012 
Passenger and Cargo 
Services at Camp James 
E. Rudder

Will the Government please clarify the Contractor requirements to support the missions 
at Camp Merrill by providing workload data in a format similar to TE 5-012 Passenger 
and Cargo Services at Camp James E. Rudder?

Camp Merrill does not have a troop lift mission other than dispatching GSA vehicles 
and the courier run.

PWS5-56 Attachment 001 PWS, 
Section C-5 Page 4, Para 
5.2.2.8

Paragraph states "The Contractor shall establish and maintain a LIS system to manage 
maintenance services, repairs, dispatch, and reporting for IMCOM/ASC activities. The 
Contractor will ensure that all DES Fire and Emergency, DPW, and LRC equipment 
/vehicles are maintained in the LIS for dispatching and services."  May the contractor 
use SAMS as the ILS system rather than establish its own?

The contractor is provided with adequate Army LIS systems, in this case SAMS-E and 
will use that system.

PWS5-57 PWS, Page 6, C.5.4.2 C.5.4.2 states, "The contractor shall maintain 24-hour security via installed intrusion 
detection systems (IDS) and closed circuit video monitoring of the perimeter and 
facilities." The government's expectation of the contractor is unclear. Is the contractor 
required just to maintain the systems or does the government expect the contractor to 
have someone on site monitor the intrusion detection system and closed circuit video 
24 hours a day, 7 days a week? Please clarify.

1) The contractor is responsible for maintain the 24-hour video camera systems in an 
operable condition. The video systems are setup to record to DVR 30-days worth of 
video.                                                                                                                                                  
2) The intrusion detection system is maintained and monitored by Directorate of 
Emergency Services (DES).                                                                                                               
3) If the Intrusion Detection System should malfunction or fail, the contractor will be 
required to provide someone to monitor the video system until such a time that the IDS 
becomes operable or until a Government Security Detail can be coordinated. 

PWS5-58 Technical Exhibits 6-
013, 6-012 and 06-016

Request the USG please provide the type of work orders performed by  type of 
equipment.  In order to properly staff the requirements of the maintenance activity, 
please provide historical types of repairs by piece of equipment or provide historical 
repair times.

This information is not available, however,  95% of work is "Field Level"

PWS5-59 PWS 5.27 Will we transport material off the post? What are the tonnage requirements, type of 
cargo, and type or length of hauls?

Generally, no, commercial carriers are used for off post transport.

PWS5-60 PWS 5.3.1 The contractor shall provide on-site Field Level maintenance services on equipment 
when it is determined by COR and IMMO that on-site repair is more economical than 
movement of the equipment to the shop for repair. The contractor shall arrange and 
coordinate Sustainment Level maintenance when required support exceeds Field Level 
capability. A representative sample of services provided is in Technical Exhibit 5.4-
005. What is the projected workload, by equipment type?

Onsite repair is minimal and discouraged by Government due to loss of direct labor 
capability when traveling to/from off-site location. TE 5.4-005 is superseded by TE 6-
019, for workload by equipment type, please refer to TE 6-013 and TE 6-019.

PWS5-61 PWS 5.26  Section C5  
page  60

Will the Government provide data on rail maintenance workload? Please refer to workload data provided in TE 5-002.  Please also note that PWS 
paragraph 5.26.3 has been deleted.



PWS5-62 PWS, Section C-5, Page 
8, Paragraph 5.4.2.3

The requirement states "The contractor shall establish and operate a battery 
maintenance facility in order to perform battery servicing tasks in accordance with TM 
9-6140-200-14 and TB 916140-252-13 and applicable safety and environmental 
guidance (in accordance with OSHA requirement 1910.151 and ANSI Z358.1-2009)."

Request the USG please provide the historical workload data for this scope element.

Please refer to revised PWS in Amendment 0005.

PWS5-63 PWS 527 What is the number of Transportation Movement Request (TMR) for Truck Tractor 
short-haul operation?

TMR workload will not be further subdivided to show this information.  Refer to TE 5-
002.

PWS5-64 RFP, PWS 5.2.2.4, 
Section C-5 page 3

For the weapons parts that require demilitarization, please provide the name and 
location of the facility used in this process?

1) For Ferris steel commodities: West Point industries
2) For Aluminum: Lotts Pattern Shop

PWS5-65 Attachment 1, PWS, 
page 7-8

Paragraph numbering skips from 5.5.4 to 5.5.8 with the last paragraph in this section 
5.4.2.3.  We are assuming this is a formatting error.  Is this correct?

Please refer to revised PWS in Amendment 0005.

PWS5-66 Performance Work 
Statement, Page 25, 
C.5.11.4

C.5.11.4 states, "The Contractor shall implement the Command Supply Discipline 
Program at Fort Benning to evaluate and ensure compliance with Army supply policy 
and procedures." There is no performance requirement outlining the standards of this 
function in the performance requirement summary. Also, AR 710-2, section 1-10(h) 
states, "The CSDP is designed for implementation by the chain of command," and that 
the program responsibilities are defined in a-f of the same section. The program 
responsibilities do not include anyone outside the chain of command, i.e. government 
contractors. Since contractor personnel have no authority in the chain of command and 
can not implement change in the command, will the government revise C.5.11.4 to 
remove "ensure compliance with Army supply policy and procedures." If not, please 
identify what the government expectation is for the contractor to "ensure compliance 
with Army supply policy and procedures."

Please refer to revised PWS in Amendment 0005.

PWS5-67 PWS, Page C-5-1, Para 
5.1.1;   PWS, Page C-5-
2, Para 5.3.3

Are all represented workers on this contract members of the AFGE Union?  If not, will 
the government provide any other CBAs that could affect bidders' proposals?

There is only one CBA and it is provided as Attachment 0008.  The union represented 
in the CBA is not the AFGE.

PWS5-68 FT Benning PWS 
Attachment 001 page C-
5 Page 5,  paragraph 
5.3.1 

 Para 5.3.1 states "A representative sample of services provided is in Technical Exhibit 
5.4-005. It does not appear this Tech Exhibit is provided with the solicitation 
documents.  Question:  Will the referenced Technical Exhibit 5.4-005 be provided or is 
the reference incorrect?

TE 5.4-005 is superseded by TE 6-019, for workload by equipment type, please refer to 
TE 6-013A and TE 6-019.  Please refer to revised PWS in Amendment 0005.

PWS5-69 PWS, Section C – 5 
Pages 58-59, Para 
C.5.24.1 and C.5.24.5

Will the Government please provide the type and quantities of containers and trailer-
mounted lights sets that will be stored and maintained under this section?

Please refer to revised PWS and Amendment 0005, TE 5-004



PWS5-70 PWS, Section C-5, pg 
60, Para 5.26.3, Rail 
Operations

This paragraph states "The contractor shall manage, use, and care for government 
owned railcars assigned to Fort Benning.  The contractor shall maintain railroad 
equipment and comply with reporting requirements of the Defense Freight Railway 
Interchange fleet in accordance with DOD 4500.9-R,  The contractor shall ensure 
government owned rail cars on hand are moved a minimum of 100 feet every 90 
calendar days."
There is no workload data associated with either the use of government owned railcars 
nor are there any railcars listed as Government Furnished Equipment.  Additionally, it 
is unclear whether the requirement to move Government owned railcars a minimum of 
100 feet every 90 days is to be performed using a Government owned locomotive or if 
the Contractor is to coordinate for a commercial rail line to perform this activity. Two 
questions follow:
(1) Request the Government provide the workload data needed to estimate against this 
requirement.  (2) Request the Government clarify how it wants the Contractor to 
perform the required movement of Government owned rail cars?

Please refer to revised PWS in Amendment 0005, PWS paragraph 5.26.3 has been 
deleted.  

PWS5-71 Attachment 001 PWS, 
Section C-5 Page 10, 
Para 5.8.1.2

The contract shall input labor daily but no later than 1000 each workday. Is the 
requirement to input the data the same or the following workday?

Please refer to revised PWS in Amendment 0005.

PWS5-72 Attachment 001 PWS, 
Section C-5 Page 10, 
Para 5.8.1.2.2

The contract shall input Class IX parts installed daily but no later than 1400 each 
workday. Is the requirement to input the data the same or the following workday?

Please refer to revised PWS in Amendment 0005.

PWS5-73 PWS 5.26, page 60  Average annual number of railcars staged at Benning?  Please refer to revised PWS in Amendment 0005, PWS paragraph 5.26.3 has been 
deleted.  

PWS5-74 PWS 5.26, page 60 Are the locomotives and locomotive personnel Government or contractor?  Please refer to revised PWS in Amendment 0005, PWS paragraph 5.26.3 has been 
deleted.  

PWS5-75 PWS 5.26, page 60 What constitutes "maintaining" railroad equipment (5.26.3)?  Please refer to revised PWS in Amendment 0005, PWS paragraph 5.26.3 has been 
deleted.  

PWS5-76 PWS 5.26, page 60 Please provide density and type of railroad equipment offer is to maintain (5.26.3)?  Please refer to revised PWS in Amendment 0005, PWS paragraph 5.26.3 has been 
deleted.  

PWS5-77 PWS 5.11 Supply 
Support Services Work 
Scope

Is the LSS contractor performing SARSS 1 and SARSS 2 services or just SARSS 1? Please refer to revised PWS in Amendment 0005.

PWS5-78 PWS 5.12.4 ICEMP 
Warehouse Workload 
and TE 4-028 Supply & 
Services- Hours of 
Operations

What are the hours of operation for the ICEMP Warehouse? TE 4-028 lists the hours of 
operation for the other Supply & Services operations but not the ICEMP Warehouse.

Please refer to revised PWS in Amendment 0005.

PWS5-79 PWS 5.12.6 Protective 
Masks Workload

How many protective masks are turned-in from re-deploying personnel to maintenance 
on a weekly basis?

Please refer to revised PWS in Amendment 0005.

PWS5-80 PWS 5.13.1.2 
Alterations in CIIP 
Workload

How many alterations are performed on trousers and shirts (same day) and on coats (5 
days)?

Please refer to TE 4-003.

PWS5-81 PWS 5.14.1  SSMO 
Workload; TE 4-003 
Supply Workload Data

How many requisitions, receipts, issues, turn-ins, and disposals are required per year? 
What is the breadth and depth of the stockage?

Please refer to  TE 4-003.

PWS5-82 PWS 5.14.1  SSMO 
Workload; TE 4-003 
Supply Workload Data

Can the Government please provide the SSMA ASL? Please refer to TE 4-003.



PWS5-83 PWS; C-5, Page 8; 
Paragraph 5.5.8.

What is the workload for this requirement: how many historical or projected carpentry 
jobs by type per year, including what must be fabricated by type and quantity?

Please refer to revised PWS in Amendment 0005.

PWS5-84 PWS; C-5, Page 8; 
Paragraph 5.6.1.

The contractor shall perform initial, random, and final inspections on equipment 
submitted for repair or services and shall determine that all repairs do not exceed 
maintenance expenditure limits (MEL) established by applicable equipment technical 
bulletins or by a local policy prior to work being initiated. The contractor shall perform 
ECOD’s as requested. What is the workload for this requirement: how many historical 
or projected inspections per year by type equipment?

1) All equipment work ordered requires both an initial inspection & final inspection. As 
far as random (inprocess) - that is a function of the Contractors Quality Management 
Team to determine.                                                                           2) There were 15-
ECOD's performed in FY12 that should be used as projected workload data, also refer 
to TE 6-013A.                                                                          3) Please refer to TE 6-
013A "pieces of equipment".

PWS5-85 PWS; C-5, Page 8; 
Paragraph 5.6.2.

The contractor shall provide technical inspection services in support of Fort Benning 
Supply for all equipment presented for turn-in, serviceability check, lateral transfer, or 
in-processing of new equipment into the Army inventory and shall perform technical 
inspections in accordance with AR 750-1 and AR 725-50 to determine condition code. 
Final disposition Recoverability Codes H or P shall not be made without a valid 
verification inspection. What is the workload for this requirement: how many historical 
or projected technical inspections per year by type equipment?

Please refer to Amendment 0005, TE 6-013AA.  

PWS5-86 Attachment 1, PWS 
Section C-5, page 3, 
paragraph 5.2.2.2 On 
Site Small Arms Maint 
Teams

How many teams are required on daily basis and how many are on a team? Historically; between 1-2 Range Support Teams each work day, with surge capacity to 
3 Range Support Teams. As this is a performance based requirement, the Government 
will not dictate the number of personnel per team.

PWS5-87 Attachment 1, PWS 
Section C-5, page 3, 
paragraph 5.2.2.3 Range 
Support Teams

How many personnel make up Range Support Team? Historically; between 1-2 Range Support Teams each work day, with surge capacity to 
3 Range Support Teams. As this is a performance based requirement, the Government 
will not dictate the number of personnel per team.

PWS5-88 Attachment 1, PWS 
Section C-5, page 31, 
paragraph 5.18.1.3

What are the normal hours of operation at Camp Merrill and Camp Rudder for fuel 
Delivery Services: For example are they required to be 24/265 or just day shift or day 
and swing shift Mon to Fri?  Please clarify

Please refer to revised PWS in Amendment 0005.

PWS5-89 Attachment 1 PWS, 
Section C-5, page 55, 
Paragraph 5.21

Will the government provide workload for Arrival Departure Airfield Control Group, 
PWS Para 5.21?

Please refer to workload data provided in TE 5-002.

PWS5-90 Attachment 1 PWS, 
Section C-5, page 58 
Paragraph 5.24

Will the government provide workload for Container Yard Operations, PWS Para 5.24? Please refer to revised PWS and TE 5-004 in Amendment 0005.

PWS5-91 Attachment 1 PWS, 
Section C-5, page 60, 
Paragraph 5.26

Will the government provide workload for Rail Operations, PWS Para 5.26 ? Please refer to workload data provided in TE 5-002.

PWS5-92 PWS, Section C – 5 PRS 
Page 79

PWS reference states "Operate three (3) on hand Government Owned Locomotives". 
Will the Government please clarify the requirement for operation and maintenance of 
three (3) on hand Government Owned Locomotives as they are not listed under GFE?

Please refer to revised PWS in Amendment 0005.

PWS5-93 PWS, Section C – 5 PRS 
Page 66

Will the Government please clarify the PWS references that are currently marked "Need 
#" on the Transportation Performance Requirement Summary (PRS)?

Please refer to revised PWS in Amendment 0005

PWS5-94 PWS, Section C – 5 PRS 
Page 71-72

Will the Government please clarify the PWS references that are currently marked 
"C.5.19.1" and "C.5.19.5" on the Transportation Performance Requirement Summary 
(PRS) as those references refer to "Ammunition Supply Services"?  

Please refer to revised PWS in Amendment 0005



PWS5-95 PWS page 130 Para 
5.28.9.2

The paragraph requires that a medical shuttle bus be provided on a recurring basis as 
per TE 5-009. then it states that a second sand hill medical bus be provided on a 
recurring basis that covers selected stops however the hours/days and the pick/stop 
times are not provided in the TE. Question : Could the government provide the 
hours/days and pick up times of operation for the second medical shuttle bus?

Please refer to Amendment 0005, TE 5-013

PWS5-96 Section C-5, Paragraph 
5.2.2.2 and 5.4.5

What types of weapons and ammunition will the contractor be handling?  Will 
contractor personnel be required to carry a side arm when working in the weapons 
room?  Are the weapons and ammunition stored  in the same location or are weapons 
and ammunition stored in separate buildings?  Please confirm that contractor personnel 
will not be firing weapons.

RE: Para 5.2.2.2 Questions 1) Please review TE 6-010 for types of weapons the 
contractor will be handling. 2) Contractor will not wear a side arm. 3) Contractor will 
be working on side arms. RE Para 5.4.5 Questions 1)Weapons and Ammunition are 
both located in Bldg 9074 2) Contractor will be functionally test firing weapons up to 
7.62mm

PWS5-97 PWS, Section C-5 Page 
30, Para 5.16.10.  

This paragraph states: "The Contractor shall conduct direct exchange of Drill Sergeant 
Clothing twice per month in accordance with the current Drill Sergeant Direct 
Exchange Program Standard Operating Procedures (SOP), the same applicable 
documents listed for the Reclamation Sale. TE 4-024 Drill Sergeant Exchange Program 
SOP  page 2,  Para 9a  Drill Sergeants must deliver the items they wish to DX to the 
DX Point, located at Main Post, Building 224, Clothing Turn-In door."             
Question:  Is there workload data to support this program? TE 4-024 states DX point is 
at BLDG 224.  Is this an annex of the Main CIF? If so what is the square footage of this 
building and where is it located?

SSA workload data is in TE 4-003.  The SSA moved from Bldg 224 to Bldg 9057 in 
2011.  TE 3-001 shows the square footage of this building.  The Drill Sgt exchange 
program occupies approximately 10,000 square feet of Bldg 9057.

PWS5-98 5.28 Motor Pool 
Operations

Will the Government provide the technical exhibit for Fort Benning Sick Call Medical 
Shuttle? There are seven buses performing the mission at present in support of the 
192nd / 198th BDE. 

Please refer to TE 5-013 provided in Amendment 0005.

PWS5-99 Section C-5 page, 
paragraph 5.4.5

Is this range solely used for test firing weapons that have been repaired by 
maintenance? Is this range used by personnel other than those working in the 
maintenance facility? Is the training that is required by the range OIC and range Safety 
Officer provided by the installation? What are the contractor equivalent in position 
categories to fulfill these positions?   

1)Yes 2) No 3)Yes 4) Gunsmith

PWS5-100 Section C-5, page 62, 
paragraph 5.28.9 

 The workload information provided in Technical Exhibit 5-002, Transportation 
Workload data in the TMP tab provides a roll-up of vehicles by several different 
categories in the “data description column”.  As this information is a roll up for the 
entire mission, is there information available that breaks this data down by location 
(i.e., TMP on Main Post, TMP on Sand Hill, and the two remote locations) and could 
this information be provided in order to provide a better estimate for meeting the 
requirements of the mission?  

The categories under Transportation Workload data, Technical Exhibit 5-002 aren't 
broken out by location.  Vendors will have to make their best assessment on 
requirements. 

PWS5-101 PWS, Section C – 5 
Page 60, Para C.5.26.3

PWS reference states "The contractor shall manage, use, and care for government 
owned railcars assigned to Fort Benning. The contractor shall maintain railroad 
equipment". Will the Government please clarify the definition of "care for government 
owned railcars assigned to Fort Benning" by providing the level of preventive  and 
scheduled maintenance (services), and accountability required? As there are zero 
railcars listed under GFE, what type and quantities of government owned railcars 
assigned to Fort Benning are currently on hand? 

PWS paragraph 5.26.3 was deleted in Amendment 0005.

PWS5-102 PWS 5.24, page 58 PWS reference requires in part the offer operate and maintain the container yard, 
however no data is provided to enable the offer to develop staffing levels. Request the 
government provide the average weekly or monthly density of containers supported in 
the yard?  

Please refer to TE 5-004 provided in Amendment 0005.

PWS5-103 PWS 5.24, page 58 PWS reference requires in part the offer operate and maintain the container yard, 
however no data is provided to enable the offer to develop staffing levels. Request the 
government provide the average weekly or monthly number of container issues?  

Please refer to TE 5-004 provided in Amendment 0005.



PWS5-104 PWS 5.24, page 58 PWS reference requires in part the offer operate and maintain the container yard, 
however no data is provided to enable the offer to develop staffing levels. Request the 
government provide the average weekly or monthly number of container receipts?  

Please refer to TE 5-004 provided in Amendment 0005.

PWS5-105 PWS 5.24, page 58 PWS reference requires in part the offer operate and maintain the container yard, 
however no data is provided to enable the offer to develop staffing levels. Request the 
government provide the average weekly or monthly number of container repairs?

Please refer to TE 5-004 provided in Amendment 0005.

PWS5-106 PWS 5.26, page 60 Are rail operations only supported at Fort Benning or is remote site support required?  
If required please specify location and scope of work.

Rail operations will be performed at the Rail Head approximately one half mile from 
the ASP.  Please note that PWS paragraph 5.26.3 was deleted.

PWS5-107 PWS 5.11 Supply 
Support Services Work 
Scope

Is Item Management part of the LSS contractor work scope? No, item management is inherently governmental.  The contractor will coordinate with 
the Government item manager and execute the required non-inherently Governmental 
functions.

PWS5-108 PWS 5.14.1.2 SSMO 
Operational Rations 
Workload

The PWS requires transporting / delivering MRE, Heat-N-Serve, UGR, UHNT, for 
other to Fort Benning units or operational exercises. Please provide workload data to 
reflect type and quantity of food delivered, and to locations for the delivery?

The PWS paragraph does not require transporting/delivery.

PWS5-109 PWS 5.14.1.4 SSMO 
Monthly Inventory of On-
Hand Stocks Workload

How many accounts are closed out manually on a monthly basis? Refer to SSMO regulations, PWS paragraph 5.14.1.3.

PWS5-110 PWS 5.14.1.4 SSMO 
Monthly Inventory of On-
Hand Stocks Workload

How many line items and what is the inventory depth of the on-hand stocks that must 
be inventoried monthly?

Please refer to TE 4-003.

PWS5-111 PWS 5.14.1.7 SSMO 
Supply of Operational 
Rations Workload

What is the stockage level for each of the operational ration types listed? Please refer to TE 4-003.

PWS5-112 PWS 5.14.1.7 SSMO 
Supply of Operational 
Rations Workload

What is the workload for the number of issues of these rations? Please refer to TE 4-003.

PWS5-113 PWS 5.15 IPBO 
Workload

What is the workload for the IPBO such as number of hand receipt holders and number 
of real property buildings accounted for in the IPBO for Fort Benning?

Please refer to TE 4-003.

PWS5-114 PWS 5.16.1 Installation 
Supply Support Activity 
and TE 4-028
Supply And Services 
Hours of Operations

Is the contractor required to keep SSA staff on standby 24 hour, 7 days a week, to 
process walk-thru requests for issue or other requests for non-mission capable (NMC) 
end items in support of garrison or field training exercises (FTXs)?

Please refer to TE 4-028 for hours of operation and PWS paragraph 1.4.1 for deviations 
to normal duty hours.

PWS5-115 PWS 5.16.2 DODAAC 
Transactions Workload

How many DODAAC transactions per year? Please refer to TE 4-003.

PWS5-116 PWS 5.16.2 DODAAC 
Transactions Workload

How many requests for new, changed, or deleted RIC through LOGSA per year? Please refer to TE 4-003.

PWS5-117 PWS 5.16.3 Central 
Receiving Point (CRP) 
Workload

What is the workload for the CRP (# pallets incoming, 3 pallets outgoing, number of 
TCN/GBLs per month for the year)?

Please refer to TE 4-003.

PWS5-118 PWS 5.16.4 FEDEX 
Workload

What is the workload for FEDEX shipments such as number shipped, number received, 
type?

FEDEX transactions are imbedded within the workload data in line 11 of TE 4-003.

PWS5-119 PWS 5.16.8 Vehicle & 
Equipment (Class VII) 
Storage Yard Workload

What is the average monthly receipt and issue of Class VII items? Please refer to TE 4-003.



PWS5-120 PWS 5.18 Bulk Fuel 
Work Scope

Is the LSS contractor required to performed or broker laboratory testing on fuels for the 
airfield and units?

Contractors are required to perform daily aqua glo testing of fuel issued at the airfield.  
Units send fuel samples to New Cumberland Army Lab for testing.  Refer to PWS 
5.18.1.2.

PWS5-121 PWS 5.18 Bulk Fuel 
Work Scope

What is the workload for laboratory testing of fuel such as frequency of testing and 
sites/equipment to be tested?

Contractors conduct visual testing for all inbound fuel deliveries to Bulk POL facility. 
Aqua glo test conducted daily.  API and conductivity test performed as required. Refer 
to PWS 5.18.1.2.

PWS5-122 PWS 5.18.1 Refueling 
Generators Workload 
and TE 4-005 POL 
Projected Data

TE 4-005 worksheet titled "Delivery Location 1" lists gallons of fuel delivered to 
various equipment. Are these gallons per year or per month?

The gallons shown in the 3rd tab of TE 4-005 are typical weekly amounts.

PWS5-123 PWS 5.19 Ammunition 
Supply Point and TE 4-
015 ASP Projected 
Workload Data

The Government has provided the quantity of rounds supported by the ASP, but it did 
not identify the types of rounds support. Would the Government provide the types of 
ammunition associated with the quantities provided in the exhibit?

Utilize information provided in TE 4-015 for proposal preparation

PWS5-124 PWS 5.19 Ammunition 
Supply Point and TE 4-
015 ASP Projected 
Workload Data

What is the stockage level for each of the types of ammo stored at the ASP? The ASP is stocked based upon the 60-90 forecasted requirements of the customer 
units which varies continuously throughout the year.

PWS5-125 PWS 5.14.1  SSMO 
Workload; TE 4-003 
Supply Workload Data

TE 4-003 for the SSMO workload lists 'MRE' and underneath it 'Quantity.' Is the MRE 
row indicating the quantity demanded and the Quantity indicating the number 
demands? Also, is the MRE for March accurate at the low level of 13?

TE 4-003 was updated in Amendment 0005.

PWS5-126 PWS; C-5, Page 5; 
Paragraph 5.3.8.

The contractor shall provide maintenance recovery assistance (i.e., transportation with 
wrecker or trailer) to units for the purpose of evacuating vehicles to a maintenance 
operation compound for repair. What is the historical or projected workload for this 
requirement, specifically, what was or what is the annual projected number of recovery 
operations?

This information is incorporated within the Work Orders & Pieces of Equipment 
detailed within TE 6-013: No more than 20 per year as updated in Amendment 0005.

PWS5-127 PWS; C-5, Page 7; 
Paragraph 5.5.4.

The contractor shall properly prepare and paint supported equipment and components 
as required to perform materiel maintenance to include sand  blasting. The contractor 
shall mix and apply various types and colors of paints to interior and exterior surfaces 
of equipment to include but not limited to single color and camouflage pattern painting 
of chemical agent resistant coating (CARC) in accordance with AR 750-1, TM 43-
0139, TB 43-0209, and local directives. In addition, the contractor shall cut stencils and 
apply letters, numbers, insignias, unit designators, and other markings. Operate and 
maintain all IMMD paint booths and breathing air machines in accordance with OSHA 
29 CFR 1910-107, AR 200-1. What is the workload for this requirement: how many 
historical or projected paint jobs by CARC and other types per year and on what types 
of equipment with numbers of each?

Please refer to TE 6-013 Allied trades Work Order & Pieces of Equipment                                                                                                                                               
NOTE: 95% of Benning's Painting is "Water Based" CARC

PWS5-128 Attachment 1 PWS, 
Section C-5, page 57, 
Paragraph 5.23

Will the government provide workload for Unit movements, PWS Para 5.23 ? Please refer to TE 5-002

PWS5-129 PWS 5.19  Section C5 
pages 31-32

 Is there a requirement for security/guards at sites such as the ASP? Yes, unarmed security is required at the ASP and CCEP/ Mata during duty hours.  
Please refer to PWS paragraph 5.4.2.



PWS5-130 PWS Section C-5 PRS, 
page 15 , 

Standards column a. States; "a. Left Behind Equipment (LBE) project reports as shown 
in Technical Exhibits 5.4-010, Equipment Service Report; 5.4- 011, Equipment Listing 
Roll-up Report; and 5.4-012, Project Status Report. When this is an ongoing project, 
these 3 reports comprise a monthly. b. RESET project status report, which identical in 
format to the LBE project status report shown in Technical Exhibit 5.4-012. When this 
is an ongoing project, this report comprises a monthly. c. Installation Capability 
Capacity report as shown in Technical Exhibit 5.4-013. A portion(s) of this report 
requires a monthly update, and a portion requires a quarterly update. This report, 
therefore, will be a monthly."         Question:  The Technical Exhibits (TE 5.4-011, TE 
5.4-012, TE 5.4-013) identified in this area of the PWS are not provided with the RFP 
Attachments and are not listed in Section J of the RFP.   Please provide these Technical 
Exhibits so offerors can fully understand the requirements.

This section of the PRS was removed in Amendment 0006. 

PWS5-131 W52P1J-12-R-0115, 
Attachment 0001 
(PWS), paragraphs 
5.20.2.2 and  5.28.9.

Technical Exhibit 3-003 has a listing of government furnished vehicles at both remote 
locations of Camp Rudder and Camp Merrill. TE 5-012 shows vehicle usage data for 
Camp Rudder.  Can you provide a similar TE with vehicle usage data for Camp 
Merrill?

There is no trooplift mission at Camp Merrill.  The transportation workload consists of 
dispatching and arranging PMCS on a GSA fleet of approximately 50 vehicles and up 
to 3 courier runs between the camp and Fort Benning.  Please refer to PWS paragraph 
5.28.14.

PWS5-132 PWS 5.2.2.10, Section C-
5,page 4

Can the government provide the Quantity  and  types of radioactive equipment that the 
contractor would be required to transport since their reference AR 700-64 is an obsolete 
publication.

Please see updated AR referenced in Amendment 0006 of AR 700-48: Equipment 
contaminated as a result of the use or damage of DA-controlled radioactive 
commodities, such as those identified in the DA Technical Bulletin (TB) 43–0116, 
containing—
(a) Tritium (h–3), for example, the M1A1 Collimator.Transport is limited to equipment 
movement between repair shops and/or processing new systems or turn-ins to the SSA. 
For equipment types and densities see TE 6-010.

PWS5-133 PWS 5.12.4 ICEMP 
Warehouse Workload

Please provide the workload for the Individual Chemical Equipment Management 
Program (ICEMP) Warehouse Operation such as number of items in the warehouse on 
the average; number of requisitions; number of receipts per year; number of issues per 
year?

Please refer to TE 4-029 of Amendment 0003.

PWS5-134 PWS Section C-5 Page 
10, Para 5.8.3.3 
Completion of Work: 
And Section C-5 PRS 
page 22

This paragraph states: "The Contractor shall complete the maintenance request in 
accordance with AR 750-1, when all work has been completed. Upon the completion of 
repair or service and final inspection of the item, the Contractor shall notify the 
customer that the equipment is ready for pickup within one working day. The 
contractor will annotate who they contacted, date and time of contact on the bottom of 
the work order".   Question: TE 5.4-007 is mentioned in the PRS but is not provided in 
the RFP will this T.E. be provided? 

Please refer to Amendment 0006.

PWS5-135 Attachment 0001 PWS, 
Section C – 2 Page 1, 
paragraph 1.1.2 & 
Section C-5 Page25, 
Paragraph 5.11, 
Attachment 0005 Price 
Matrix

When naming the four FBGA LRC divisions, the first sentence in paragraph 1.1.2 
refers to the "Base Supply Division", the second sentence in that paragraph refers to the 
same division as the "Installation Supply Division" (ISD), and paragraph 5.1.1 refers to 
it as the "Installation Supply and Services Division (ISSD).  Attachment 0005 Price 
Matrix refers to "Installation Supply Division (ISD)". What is the correct title for this 
division?

Installation Supply and Services Division.

PWS5-136 PWS 5.12.5 CIF 
Weapons and TE 4-022 
CIF Weapons Data

The PWS states the contractor shall receive, store, safeguard, issue, ship, research, and 
account for all weapons assigned to the Main CIF. TE 4-022 lists the active and 
inactive weapons and the number of turn-ins. How many weapons are issued per year?

Please refer to TE 6-017.

PWS5-137 PWS 5.16.5 Installation 
Storage Facilities 
Workload

What is the workload for the installation storage facilities such as number of facilities, 
number of out-shipments requiring packing and processing, number of evacuations and 
items sent for repair, number of sensitive item transports to IMD?

Please refer to TE 4-003.



PWS5-138 PWS 5.16.7 Repairable 
Items Workload

How many repairable items are received though the SSA? How many repairable items 
are shipped through the SSA to maintenance? How many repairable items are returned 
to stock in the SSA?

Please refer to TE 4-003.

PWS5-139 PWS 5.12 CIF  
Workload and TE 4-003 
Supply Workload Data

The PWS states the requirement to requisition and to process e-order fittings. TE 4-003 
does not list number of requisitions or e-order fittings. How many requisitions and how 
many e-order fittings are processed by the CIF?

E-Order fittings are not broken out separately and are on as needed basis.

PWS5-140 PWS, Section C-5, Page 
4, Paragraph 5.2.2.10 
and Page 30, Paragraph 
5.16.6

Based on the performance work statement, a contractor-provided Radiation Safety 
Officer is needed for the project.  The requirement (5.16.6) states that the contractor 
shall perform wipe test of radioactive items that are to be shipped, coordinate with the 
Installation Radiation Protection Officer (RPO) and ship with all related paperwork.  
Additionally, the requirement (5.2.2.10) states that the contractor shall repair, store, 
account for, inspect and transport equipment containing radioactive material.  
Furthermore, the contractor shall establish and maintain a Radiation Safety Program to 
include a written SOP to comply with, AR 700-64, DA PAM 385-24, and other 
applicable ARs, TBs, or OSHA publications for protection and operating procedures 
within MMD for the proper repair, storage, and transportation of equipment containing 
radioactive material.

Will the Government provide radioactive source and mass / source strength information 
and number of annual wipe tests?

Tritium - 1 annual wipe test for Mata, 1 annual wipe test for CCEP, IAW PWS 
paragraph 5.16.6 and page 76 of the PRS for 5.1.5, 5.1.5.1 and 5.1.5.2. 

PWS5-141 PWS 5.2.2.4 PWS States: " Demilitarization of Unserviceable Weapons Parts: The contractor shall 
demilitarize or dispose of all unserviceable weapons parts in accordance with governing 
codes and regulations. The current method is to melt all such parts at a commercial 
facility and abandon the residue there. The COR or representative shall maintain a 
“chain of custody” throughout the entire process, witness all actions, and sign the 
memorandum certifying the demilitarization and disposal of the materiel. For disposal 
of items not accepted for melting by commercial vendors, the Contractor shall either 
demilitarize/dispose in-house or turn-in specific items by NSN." What is the projected 
workload for this requirement, including type weapons and density of each? 

1) The Government established and maintains a "No Cost" to any party agreement with 
two foundries, one melts ferris metals, the other melts non-ferris (aluminum metals).                                                                                                                                                                                      
2) Should either (or both foundries) terminate existing agreements, equipment is in 
place to Demil weapons and all other commodities I/A/W regulations, such as band 
saws, hand saws, chisels and torches.                                                                                        
3) Workload relating to this "Demil" averages between 1,000 to 3,000 Lbs of either 
Aluminum or Ferris Steel, 5-trips per year to the foundry, each trip can be accomplished 
in a regular 8-hour day. The Government provides a GSA stake bed truck, the round 
trip mileage is 124 miles for each trip.

PWS5-142 PWS 5.3.3 The contractor shall provide support for the planning and fielding of new equipment to 
include technical evaluations, review of maintenance requirements, New Equipment 
Training (NET), Test Measurement and Diagnostic Equipment (TMDE), repair parts, 
shop space, and staffing level analysis. What is the projected workload for this 
requirement, including type equipment

Minimal NET training is required, the most significant Net requirement is for 3-DES 
Fire Trucks.

Question # RFP Reference QUESTION ANSWER
Att-1 Solicitation - Attachment 

005, Ft. Benning Price 
Matrix

The identified CLINs do not include a CLIN for PMO support. Are offerors to allocate 
PMS expenses across all CLINS or will the government establish a separate CLIN for 
this support?

The Government does not intend to establish a separate CLIN for PMO support. It is up 
to the Offeror to allocate its PMO costs to the appropriate Labor CLIN.

Att-2 Task Order RFP 
Attachment 0005

In what CLIN do we account for PMO costs during the contract period of performance? The Government does not intend to establish a separate CLIN for PMO support. It is up 
to the Offeror to allocate its PMO costs to the appropriate Labor CLIN.

Att-3 Task Order RFP 
Attachments 0009 and  
0012

Are bidders who do not have a negotiated agreement with the union required to bid 
CBA rates?

Yes, IAW FAR 22.1002-3, Wage Determinations Based on Collective Bargaining 
Agreements

Attachment Questions



Att-4 Task Order RFP, 
Attachment 0009

Will the government provide a seniority roster for all represented workers to be used in 
cost calculations?

IAW FAR 22.1020, a seniority list will be provided to the successor contractor at the 
commencement of the succeeding contract

Att-5 Task Order RFP, 
Attachment 0009

Will the government please advise if offerors are to use the 2012 or 2013 rates in their 
price proposal?

It is anticipated that the task order will be awarded in April 2013, however this date is 
subject to change.

Att-6 General Will the government provide the current CBA Attachment 0008 is the current CBA.
Att-7 Attachment 0008, CBA Request the Government confirm that the Attachment 0008, CBA (between ITT 

Corporation, Systems Division and Columbus Metal Trades Council) current CBA and 
all amendments to the CBA, including (titles and rates)  that was released with the 
solicitation is the current CBA in place on the current contract.

Attachment 0008 is the current CBA.

Att-8 Attachment 0005 Price 
Matrix

Cells D18, F18, G18, and H18 are blue cells, indicating the offeror must provide input, 
yet these cells are not editable. Please correct. 

Please refer to Amendment 0003, Attachment 0005

Att-9 Solicitation - Attachment 
005, Ft. Benning Price 
Matrix

The MS Excel file provided includes password protected cells D18, F18, G18 and H18 
where bidders are to enter Award Fee values (E18 is unlocked).  Will a revised version 
of Attachment 0005 be provided with these cells unlocked or should bidders recreate 
the format in its entirety with all cells unprotected?

Please refer to Amendment 0003, Attachment 0005

Att-10 Attachment 0011 Award 
Fee Plan, page 5, 
paragraph 5.2.1

Attachment 00, 11Paragraph 5.2.1   says that the Maintenance section is worth 27 
points, but in the description it says we can earn 26 points. This makes us only able to 
receive 99% of the award fee in a perfect situation. Please correct this apparent 
inconsistency. 

Please refer to Amendment 0003, Section A, paragraphs 3) and 4)

Att-11 Attachment 0011, 
AWARD FEE PLAN, 
Paragraph 5.2.1

Paragraph 5.2.1 states that the list of Maintenance Contract Requirements is in the 
attached Performance Review Summary (PRS), however, there is no attachment 
provided.  Please provide the PRS attachment.

Please refer to Amendment 0003, Section A, paragraphs 3) and 4)

Att-12 Attachment 0002 Will the Government provide the current SCA for the labor classes represented on this 
attachment?

Please refer to Attachment 0008 - CBA and Attachment 0010 - DOL Wage 
Determination.

Att-13 Attachment 0008 CBA Will the Government please advise what the proposed start date of contract is so that 
the proper CBA rates can be used?

 It is anticipated that the task order will be awarded in April 2013, however this date is 
subject to change.

Att-14 CBA, Attachment 0008 Please confirm that the Offeror should use the current CBA rates for bidding the CBA 
positions for the base and each option period.  Should the Offeror assume a specific 
escalation rate for each option year?

 It is anticipated that the task order will be awarded in April 2013, however this date is 
subject to change.

Att-15 CBA, Attachment 0008 Please confirm that all offerors should use the current CBA rates for bidding purposes.  
Is there a specific escalation rate offerors should use for escalation or should all offer 
use the current CBA rates for the base and each option year?

 It is anticipated that the task order will be awarded in April 2013, however this date is 
subject to change.

Att-16 Solicitation - Attachment 
0008, CBA and 
Attachment _010_-
_DOL_Wage_Determina
tion

Reference 29 CFR 4.163 - Section 4c of the Act, subparagraph g, and considering that 
both a CBA and Wage Determination have been included as part of the solicitation, can 
the government please confirm which of these (the CBA or WD) covers the greatest 
portion of the work, and would therefore govern all similar positions?  

The PWS as applied against the CBA and Wage Determinations provided as 
attachment 0008 and 0010 respectively, should inform the Offeror how to propose.

Att-17 Solicitation - Attachment 
0008, CBA and 
Attachment _010_-
_DOL_Wage_Determina
tion

Can the government confirm our understanding that if the CBA governs the greatest 
portion of work, then employees for any work at Fort Benning that requires the same 
labor classifications would be paid at the wage rates and fringe benefits in the CBA?

The PWS as applied against the CBA and Wage Determinations provided as 
attachment 0008 and 0010 respectively, should inform the Offeror how to propose.

Att-18 Fort Benning- Columbus 
Metal Trades Collective 
Bargaining Agreement

Will the government provide any documented jurisdictional work agreements between 
the various Unions which are signatory to the Ft. Benning Collective Bargaining 
Agreement?

No, all information available has been provided with the solicitation

Att-19 We understand there is a CBA in place.  Will the government provide a copy? The CBA was provided as Attachment 0008 and was emailed to BOA Attachment 0003 
POCs.



Att-20 Attachment 0008 The current CBA was provided  however, the CBA did not include position description 
narratives.  Request position description be provided for each CBA identified labor 
position.

No additional descriptions are available.

Att-21 Attachment List, Section 
J

The Award Fee Plan is not included in the attachments to the RFP. Please provide as an 
attachment.

Please refer to Amendment 0003, Section A, paragraphs 3) and 4)

Att-22 Attachment List, Section 
J

The Award Fee Plan is not included in the attachments to the RFP. Please provide as an 
attachment.

Please refer to Amendment 0003, Section A, paragraphs 3) and 4)

Att-23 Attachment 8 Please verify that there is only one CBA for this proposal. There is only one CBA and is provided at Attachment 0008.
Att-24 Attachment 0008 - CBA, 

Page 23
on page 23 of the CBA the Heavy Vehicle Mechanic (no additional designator) and the 
Heavy Vehicle Mechanic (FL-R) are the exact same pay rate. No where else in the CBA 
are the Ft Benning pay rates the same as those designated (FL-R). Are the pay rates for 
Heavy Vehicle Mechanic at Fort Benning in fact the exactly same rates that are used at 
Camp Ruder at Eglin AFB? Please clarify, this is needed for proper pricing of cost 
proposals.

Offerors shall use the CBA rates and Wage Determinations included in the RFP when 
preparing their proposal.

Att-25 W52P1J-12-R-0115          
Attachment 0002, 
Staffing Labor Mix

Our review of solicitation Attachment 0002, the applicable CBA, and the SCA Area 
Wage Determination(AWD) reveals that there are very few labor categories in 
Attachment 0002 that match the CBA and the AWD.  Instructions in Attachment 0002 
are that we should add labor categories as we deem necessary.  However, this will result 
in a substantial number of labor categories being added.  Has the Government 
considered revising Attachment 0002 to more closely match the Ft Benning CBA and 
AWD?  Or would we proceed with adding a large number of labor categories to 
Attachment 0002?  Please clarify the Government's intent.

The labor categories provided in Attachment 0002 are provided for reference only.  
Offerors will need to submit with labor categories applicable to their approach for 
fulfilling the PWS requirements.

Att-26 Reference 29 CFR 4.163 - Section 4c of the Act, subparagraph g, and considering that 
both a CBA and Wage Determination have been included as part of the solicitation, can 
the government please confirm which of these (the CBA or WD) covers the greatest 
portion of the work, and would therefore govern all similar positions?  

The PWS as applied against the CBA and Wage Determinations provided as 
Attachment 0008 and 0010 respectively should inform the offeror how to propose.

Att-27 Can the government confirm our understanding that if the CBA governs the greatest 
portion of work, then employees for any work at Fort Benning that requires the same 
labor classifications would be paid at the wage rates and fringe benefits in the CBA?

The PWS as applied against the CBA and Wage Determinations provided as 
Attachment 0008 and 0010 respectively should inform the offeror how to propose.

Att-28 Attachment 0010, WD The WD provided does not include all counties (i.e. Florida and Georgia) covered by 
the solicitation.  Is there another WD the government would like us to use?

Offerors shall use the CBA rates and Wage Determinations included in the RFP when 
preparing their proposal.

Att-29 Attachment 9 - DD254 Page 1 of the DD254 references Ft Benning which is contrary to Page 2, Section 13, 
Ref 11a, which references Ft Bragg.

Will the Government provide a corrected page 2 for this DD254?

This will be corrected in the "Final" DD254.

Att-30 Attachment 9 - DD254 Page 2, Section 13, Ref 10.j references an attached Appendix 3.  Appendix 3 is not 
attached.

Will the Government provide Appendix 3?

This will be provided in the "Final" DD254. 

Att-31 Attachment 9 - DD254 Page 2, Section 13, Ref 11e states that classification guidance needed will be provided 
by the contractor.

Should this read: "classification guidance needed will be provided by the Government"?

This will be corrected in the "Final" DD254.



Att-32 Attachment 9 - DD254 
and PWS, Section C-2, 
Page 15, Paragraph 
1.5.12

Page 1, Section 11j OPSEC requirements is marked "No".  This is contrary to the PWS 
Para 1.5.12 which states that the contractor will develop an OPSEC plan.

Will the DD254 be marked “yes” or will Para 1.5.12 be removed?

This will be marked "yes" in the "Final" DD254.

Att-33 Collective Bargaining 
Agreement

Can the government provide the job/duty descriptions meet the requirements of the 
positions that are listed in the CBA? 

No additional descriptions are available.

Att-34 Attachment 0008, 
Collective Bargaining 
Agreement Between ITT 
Corporation, Systems 
Division and Columbus 
Metal Trades Council.

A Collective Bargaining Agreement was included in the solicitation for ITT 
Corporation, Systems Division and the Columbus Metal Trades Counsel.  Question: 
Since there is an established CBA for ITT Corp., is there a CBA between Honeywell 
Technology Solutions, Inc. and a local union also?  If yes, shouldn't the Government 
provide this CBA for this solicitation?

The applicable CBA that will be used is provided as Attachment 0008.  A CBA is not 
applicable to the Honeywell contract, W911SE-07-D-0006-2B01.

Att-35  Attachment 0008 CBA Please confirm that DOL Rule 29 CFR 4.163-Section 4(c) applies to the CBA 
incorporated in this TO; specifically the clause stating: The obligation of the successor 
contractor is limited to the wage and fringe benefit requirements of the predecessor's 
collective bargaining agreement and does not extend to other items such as seniority, 
grievance procedures, work rules, overtime, etc. 

The PWS as applied against the CBA and Wage Determinations provided as 
Attachment 0008 and 0010 respectively should inform the offeror how to propose.

Att-36  Attachment 0008 CBA 
and Attachment 0010 
DOL Wage 
Determination

As the CBA supersedes the DOL Wage Determination and offerors cannot reference 
the DOL Directory of Occupations, please provide job descriptions for the positions 
identified in the CBA.

No additional descriptions are available.

Att-37 Attachment 0002 
Staffing Labor Mix

The Attachment 0002 staffing template directs offerors to add labor categories as 
needed. However, none of the 43 SCA Labor Categories listed tie to the 81 CBA 
categories that must be used by offerors.  Can we replace all of the SCA categories 
rather than adding 81+ lines to the spreadsheet?

Offerors shall comply with the instructions provided at L.5.2.1.3.

Att-38 Attachment 0010, WD The WD provided does not include all counties (i.e. Florida and Georgia) covered by 
the solicitation.  Is there another WD the government would like us to use?

Offerors shall use the CBA rates and Wage Determinations included in the RFP when 
preparing their proposal.

Att-39 Attachment 0008 - CBA, 
Page 23

On page 23 of the CBA it lists four (4) types of Heavy Vehicle Mechanics. One just as 
Heavy Vehicle Mechanic, one as Heavy Vehicle Mechanic (FL), one as Heavy Vehicle 
Mechanic (GA-M), and one as Heavy Vehicle Mechanic (FL-R). We assume, and 
please correct if this is in error, that the plain (no designator) Heavy Vehicle Mechanic 
is for Ft. Benning proper, Heavy Vehicle Mechanic (GA-M) is for use at Camp Merrill, 
and Heavy Vehicle Mechanic (FL-R) is for Camp Ruder at Eglina AFB. But what is 
Heavy Vehicle Mechanic (FL) for? Please Clarify. 

No additional descriptions are available.

Question # RFP Reference QUESTION ANSWER
Ex-1 TE 6-013, Material 

Maintenance Workload 
Projection, Maintenance 
Work Order Summary

TE 6-013 only provides the number of Work Orders and Vehicle Density.  Will the 
Government Provide STAMIS workload data for FY 2012 to include; Job #, LIN, 
Model, Malfunction Description, Shop Code and Man Hours?

This information will not be provided.

Exhibit Questions



Ex-2 Final TE 6-013, Material 
Maintenance Workload 
Projections

TE 6-013 list the Maintenance Workload by work orders and pieces in broad 
categories, i.e., Wheeled Vehicles, Tactical and Combat Vehicles.  In order not to give 
the current contractor an unfair advantage request government provide details on types 
of equipment and direct maintenance hours required to perform each work order.

This information will not be provided. TE 6-013 provides sufficient equipment 
information. As this is a performance based requirement, it is up to the Offeror to 
submit a proposal based on their approach to meeting the contract requirements.

Ex-3 TE 6-014 IMCOM 
Equipment Densities

Are the field repair work orders for equipment on TE 6-014 IMCOM Equipment 
Densities included in the work orders listed on Final TE 6-013 Material Maintenance 
Workload Projection?  If not how many and what are the numbers of hours for work 
orders to repair to TM 10/20 for this equipment?

Yes, they are included.

Ex-4 TE 6-014 IMCOM 
Equipment Densities

Are the PMCS work orders for equipment on TE 6-014 IMCOM Equipment Densities 
included in the work orders listed on Final TE 6-013 Material Maintenance Workload 
Projection?  If not how many and what are the numbers of hours for work orders to 
perform PMCS for this equipment?

Yes, they are included.

Ex-5 Technical Exhibit 4-028                                                                                          
Supply and Services - 
(Hours of Operation)                                         
ITEM 4. Central Issue 
facility(CIF),  Monday 
through Friday,   (0800 -
1630) Except Holidays. 
Sunday (0900-1500)

Will the Government please provide the projected level of effort for Sunday operations 
for the CIF and explain the mission operation(s) this effort supports?

CIF operations are normally provided to redeploying soldiers.  There is no anticipated 
Sunday work at this time for the CIF.

Ex-6 TE 6.012 thru 6.015 The Technical Exhibits provide number of work orders and the pieces of equipment, 
but it does not provide the hours per work order.  What is the projected hourly work 
load  for the equipment?

As this is a performance based requirement that relies upon the experience of 
knowledgeable contractors to employ innovative techniques necessary to deliver 
successful work plans, staffing strategies and management approaches, no hourly 
workload will be provided.

Ex-7 TE 4-003 Supply 
Workload Data and TE 4-
027 Annual Workload 
Data for CIIP and Main 
Post CIF

TE 4-027 lists 65,000 issue and turn-in transactions for the Main Post CIF. TE 4-003 
lists a total of 81,566 for same (total of individual and bulk issues and turn-ins). Which 
is accurate?

Main post only.  There are no remote or satellite sites.

Ex-8 TE 6-013 The maintenance order summary shows the yearly numbers of work orders and a lump 
sum of equipment associated with the work orders. The numbers appear to be 
inconsistent and are not one for one (1 WO to 1 piece of equipment). Please clarify the 
data and the details behind the inconsistence of the ratio of WOs to pieces of 
equipment.

TE 6-013 has been superseded by TE 6-013A shall be considered as a full years worth 
of maintenance projected workload. The reason for the disparity between the number of 
work orders and the pieces of equipment is that non-serialized equipment can be 
processed with more than 1-item on a work order, as an example - Protective Masks

Ex-9 Final TE 6-013, Material 
Maintenance Workload 
Projections, TE 6-010 
CCEP Equipment 
Density, and TE 6-009 
CCEP Policy (Para 13.a)

TE 6-013 lists the Maintenance Workload by work orders and pieces in broad 
categories and TE 6-010 lists the CCEP Equipment Density. TE 6-009 CCEP Policy 
requires the CCEP to conduct full Quarterly and Annual Preventive Maintenance 
Checks and Services (PMCS) and minor repairs during each unit's training cycle 
breaks. Are these PMCS checks and minor repairs of CCEP equipment performed in 
the unit's area included in the work order data in TE 6-013 or should the PMCS 
requirements for the CCEP items be calculated in addition to the work order data in TE 
6-013?

CCEP PMCS  requirements may be calculated using equipment densities listed in  TE 6-
010. None of the workload performed in the unit areas during cycle breaks are included 
in TE 6-013 workloads. 

Ex-10 Exhibits AJ and AL, TE 
6-011a and TE 6-013A

Are the weapons listed in TE 6-13a in addition to the weapons in TE 6-011a or they the 
same?

TE 6-011a references Training Units Approved for Year Long Tally's & Density of 
Weapons Authorized. TE 6-013a is maintenance workload.



Ex-11 Amendment 0001 
Technical Exhibit 6-
013A, Material 
Management Workload 
Projection

Please verify the workload provided by Technical exhibit 6-013A is accurate.  In many 
cases the # of work orders is the same as the pieces of equipment.  Fire trucks and 
busses for example normally have several scheduled maintenance actions and several 
breakdown maintenance actions annually, while TE 6-013 indicates there are 231 work 
orders and pieces of equipment for COTS (includes fire trucks and busses).  Will  the 
Government provide workload in hours by shop rather than by work order so that all 
offerors may propose staffing based on a clearly defined workload.

In addition to TE 6-013A, refer also to TE 6-014 for specific breakout of IMCOM 
equipment. As this is a performance based requirement, hours will not be provided.

Ex-12 Work Load Data Can the Government provide the workload data for the 
CIF/SSA/ASP/IPBO/ICEMP/CIIP operations?

Please refer to TE 4-003.

Ex-13 Work Load Data Does the workload data provided include the Crescenz Consolidated Equipment Pool 
(CCEP)?

Offeror is to calculate maintenance workload based on equipment densities detailed in 
TE 6-010. 

Ex-14 Technical Exhibit 6-015 
Miscellaneous 
Maintenance Workload 
Data

Please provide adequate detail on the modification work orders to allow offers from 
other than the incumbent to estimate the work involved. For example this exhibit 
identifies 6 Modification Work Orders were ordered for 896 items but fails to describe 
what modifications were completed or the hours required to modify the 896 items. This 
lack of detail gives the incumbent an unfair advantage over all the other competitors.

TE 6-015 articulates the total magnitude of MWO's that are tracked administratively.  
The MMD is responsible for the entire "Installation" when reporting/researching/and 
ensuring compliance with MWO's. From May 2011 thru April 2012, the number of 
MWOs the Materiel Maintenance Activity actually performed, or handled 
administratively while another activity performed the work as identified in TE 6-015. 

Ex-15 Technical Exhibit 6-012 
Annual CCEP Talley 
Workload  and 
Amendment 0001 
Technical Exhibit 6-
013A Material 
Management Workload 
Projection   

Please clarify if the 617,175 pieces of equipment identified in Technical Exhibit 6-012 
Annual CCEP tally workload are also shown in Amendment 0001 Technical Exhibit 6-
013A.

No. Only a fraction of the 617,175 pieces in TE 6-012 are included in TE 6-013A  if 
work ordered as a pass back to Mata.  The weapons pool manages its own workload.  If 
the weapons pool gets behind they transfer back to MATA to perform maintenance. TE 
6013A is workload data for Mata and Mizener. TE 6-012 is an equipment listing.

Ex-16 Amendment 0001 
Technical Exhibits

The Government states in "Amendment 0001" that the amendment includes "updated 
Tech Exhibits per Amendment 0001..." These "updated Tech Exhibits per Amendment 
0001" haven't been incorporated in Amendment 0001 or even the most recent 
Amendment 0002 on FedBizops. Will they be incorporated in a future amendment as 
the staffing numbers from the initial exhibits to the changed exhibits have increase by 
100%. Since these exhibits haven't been incorporated into the RFP in Amendment 0001 
or 0002, which staffing numbers are to be used in the preparation of the proposal as the 
numbers have a huge impact on the staffing of the project.  Also, will the new staffing 
requirements be incorporated into the solicitation via amendment, correct?

The applicable updated Tech Exhibits were emailed to BOA holders' Attachment 0003 
POCs.

Ex-17 Technical Exhibit 4-003 
Supply Workload Data 
Technical Exhibit 4-027 
Workload data for CIIP 
and Main Post CIF

Both of these Technical exhibits have workload data for the CIIP and Main Post CIF 
facilities? Data on these TE don't match, Question:  Which data is correct for CIIP and 
CIF?  Which TE should be used for CIIP and CIF workload?

Please use 4-003.  TE4-027 has been deleted in Amendment 0005.

Ex-18 Technical Exhibit 4-028 
Supply and Services 
hours of operations.  

TE 4-028 shows a 2nd Shift night time issue for CIIP.   Question:   TE 4-003 Has no 
workload data to support TE 4-028 night shift.  Will workload data for night shift be 
provided?

Please refer to revised PWS in Amendment 0005

Ex-19 Technical Exhibit 4-003 
(Supply Workload Data)

The 123 local purchases reflected in TE 4-003 appears low. Does the local purchase 
historical workload in TE 4-003 include; engines, filters, batteries, seals, tires, 
lubricants, PPE, bench stock, office supplies and boxes?

Additional information is not available.  Offerors shall use information in TE 4-003 of 
Amendment 0005 for proposal preparation.



Ex-20 CIF Section of TE 4-003 
Supply Workload Data.  
Lateral Transfers

The workload data for Lateral Transfers was not provided.  Does the information exist 
or should we assume this is not being performed at the CIF?   Is the workload data 
provided in another document?

Additional information is not available.  Offerors shall use information in TE 4-003 of 
Amendment 0005 for proposal preparation.

Ex-21 CIF Section of TE 4-003 
Supply Workload Data. 
Maintain suspense file 
for Temporary Loans

The workload data for Temporary Loans was not provided.  Does the information exist, 
Is the workload data provided in another document, or should we assume this function 
is not performed at FTBGA?

Additional information is not available.  Offerors shall use information in TE 4-003 of 
Amendment 0005 for proposal preparation.

Ex-22 CIF Section of TE 4-003 
Supply Workload Data.  
Maintain a record of 
active OCIE records 
including DA Form 
3645-1

The workload data for maintaining a record of active OCIE records including DA Form 
3645-1 was not provided.  Does the information exist or should we assume this is not 
being performed at the CIF?   Is the workload data provided in another document?

Additional information is not available.  Offerors shall use information in TE 4-003 of 
Amendment 0005 for proposal preparation.

Ex-23 CIF Section of TE 4-003 
Supply Workload Data.  
ICMEP PWS C.5.12.4

The workload data for ICEMP was not provided.  Does the information exist or should 
we assume this is not being performed at the CIF?   Is the workload data provided in 
another document?  

Please refer to TE4-028

Ex-24 CIF Section of TE 4-003 
Supply Workload Data.  
Prepare and submit 
administrative 
Adjustment Reports 
(AAR)

The workload data for processing AAR's was not provided.  Does the information exist 
or should we assume this is not being performed at the CIF?   Is the workload data 
provided in another document?

Additional information is not available.  Offerors shall use information in TE 4-003 of 
Amendment 0005 for proposal preparation.

Ex-25 CIF Section of TE 4-003 
Supply Workload Data.  
Weapons PWS C.5.12.5

The workload data for Weapons was not provided and is not addressed in the PRS.  
Does the information exist or should we assume this is not being performed at the CIF?   
Is the workload data provided in another document?  

Please refer to TE 4-022, weapons listing.

Ex-26 CIF Section of TE 4-003 
Supply Workload Data.  
Protective Mask PWS 
C.5.12.6

The workload data for Weapons was not provided and is not addressed in the PRS.  
Does the information exist or should we assume this is not being performed at the CIF?   
Is the workload data provided in another document?  

Please refer to revised PWS in Amendment 0005

Ex-27 SSMO section of TE 4-
003 Supply Workload 
Data. Receive, inspect, 
inventory and warehouse 
subsistence items from 
commercial carriers.

The workload data for processing commercial vehicles was not provided.  Does the 
information exist or should we assume this is not being performed at the CIF?   Is the 
workload data provided in another document?

Additional information is not available.  Offerors shall use information in TE 4-003 of 
Amendment 0005 for proposal preparation.

Ex-28 SSMO section of TE 4-
003 Supply Workload 
Data. Process 
subsistence requisitions.

The workload data for processing subsistence requisitions  was not provided.  Does the 
information exist or should we assume this is not being performed at the CIF?   Is the 
workload data provided in another document?

Additional information is not available.  Offerors shall use information in TE 4-003 of 
Amendment 0005 for proposal preparation.

Ex-29 SSMO section of TE 4-
003 Supply Workload 
Data. Process Invoices.

The workload data for processing invoices  was not provided.  Does the information 
exist or should we assume this is not being performed at the CIF?   Is the workload data 
provided in another document?

Additional information is not available.  Offerors shall use information in TE 4-003 of 
Amendment 0005 for proposal preparation.



Ex-30 SSMO section of TE 4-
003 Supply Workload 
Data. Process turn-ins 
after Vet Inspections.

The workload data for processing turn-ins after Vet Inspections  was not provided.  
Does the information exist or should we assume this is not being performed at the CIF?   
Is the workload data provided in another document?

Additional information is not available.  Offerors shall use information in TE 4-003 of 
Amendment 0005 for proposal preparation.

Ex-31 SSMO section of TE 4-
003 Supply Workload 
Data. Store and 
Safeguard.

The workload data for Storing and Safeguarding Subsistence was not provided.  Does 
the information exist or should we assume this is not being performed at the CIF?   Is 
the workload data provided in another document?

Additional information is not available.  Offerors shall use information in TE 4-003 of 
Amendment 0005 for proposal preparation.

Ex-32 SSMO section of TE 4-
003 Supply Workload 
Data. Issue Subsistence 
to customer.

The workload data for Issuing Subsistence was not provided.  Does the information 
exist or should we assume this is not being performed at the CIF?   Is the workload data 
provided in another document?

Additional information is not available.  Offerors shall use information in revised TE 4-
003 in Amendment 0005 for proposal preparation.

Ex-33 SSMO section of TE 4-
003 Supply Workload 
Data. Complete 
Required Inventories.

The workload data for completing required  Subsistence inventories was not provided.  
Does the information exist or should we assume this is not being performed at the CIF?   
Is the workload data provided in another document?

Additional information is not available.  Offerors shall use information in revised TE 4-
003 in Amendment 0005 for proposal preparation.

Ex-34 SSMO section of TE 4-
003 Supply Workload 
Data. Manually close out 
all accounts monthly.

The workload data for closing out all accounts manually each month was not provided.  
Does the information exist or should we assume this is not being performed at the CIF?   
Is the workload data provided in another document?

Additional information is not available.  Offerors shall use information in TE 4-003 of 
Amendment 0005 for proposal preparation.

Ex-35 Installation Property 
Book section of TE 4-
003 Supply Workload 
Data.

The final draft omitted processing FLIPLs, turn-ins, Found on Installation, 
Administrative Adjustment Reports (AAR), Lateral Transfers, Customer reconciliations 
and duplicated suspense files, completed transaction files, printing customer hand 
receipts, and processing requisitions.  Was this omission and duplication intentional 
and should we address the omitted areas?  If we are to address the omitted areas the 
workload data is needed.  

Additional information is not available.  Offerors shall use information in TE 4-003 of 
Amendment 0005 for proposal preparation.

Ex-36 Installation Supply 
Support Activity. TE 4-
003 Supply Workload 
Data

The workload data for the following areas was not addressed. Please clarify the 
following:  Found on Installation (FOI)' DLADS withdrawal documents, turn-in 
documents for DLADS (5.16.1), excess CLVII transactions, DODAAC transactions, 
Turn-In documents (5.16.5.1), FedEx (5.16.4), Arms Storage Facility (C.16.5), 
Repairable Items (C.5.16.7), and Cl VII (C.5.16.8), 

Additional information is not available.  Offerors shall use information in TE 4-003 of 
Amendment 0005 for proposal preparation.

Ex-37 Technical Exhibits 
Workload Data; TE 4-
003 Supply Workload 
Data, Page 2, Section 
Central Issue Facility 
(CIF)

Workload data received in the Technical Exhibits provided by the Government appear 
grossly inaccurate. For example, TE 4-003 Supply Workload Data provides workload 
data for the CIF calculating to single-digit FTE totals. However, during the site visit on 
29 OCT, there were double-digit FTEs working in the CIF. With data collected from 
the provided TEs, the site visit, and overall operational knowledge of the DOL, the 
discrepancies prevent an accurate calculation for cost estimating and pricing. Request 
the Government provide revised TEs with more accurate workload data (all TEs, not 
just specific to the CIF).

Additional information is not available.  Offerors shall use information in TE 4-003 of 
Amendment 0005 for proposal preparation.

Ex-38 General: Solicitation 
Files, Attachments, 
Exhibits and CDRLS

Upon review of the Attachments, Exhibits and CDRLS for the solicitation, TE's I and O 
appear to be missing.

Please confirm that Technical Exhibits I and O do not exist for this solicitation.

This is correct.



Ex-39 Technical Exhibit 6-013 
Material Maintenance 
Workload Projection 
Maintenance Work 
Order Summary

Question:  What does the term CPAC mean?   Please refer to revised PWS in Amendment 0005

Ex-40 TE 6-009 CCEP Policy, 
Para 13a(20

Are the contact maintenance Direct Support Team (DST) teams referenced in TE 6-009 
the same as the "On-site Unit Level Support Teams" in TE 6-011, paragraph 2 and the 
Small Arms Maintenance Teams in PWS, paragraph 5.2.1.2?  If not what is the 
difference between these three teams?

Yes - reference to "Direct Support Teams" in TE 6-009 and "On-Site Unit Level 
Teams" in TE 6-011 and in revised PWS, Para 5.2.2.2 (not 5.2.1.2) are the same.

Ex-41 PWS, Page 62, Section 
C-5, paragraph 5.28.9 
and TE 5-012 Passenger 
and Cargo Service at 
Camp James E. Rudder

Paragraph 5.28.9 states "The contractor shall provide bus/truck and driver support to 
meet authorized requirements for the Installation and Remote Camps as approved by 
the PCO, COR or designated representative. Technical Exhibit 5-012 shows this type of 
workload data at Camp James E. Rudder, and Eglin Air Force Base, Florida." Technical 
Exhibit 5-012 only shows work at Camp James E. Rudder for a 18 day period but does 
not indicate if this 18 day period occurs only once annually and does not address any 
other remote sites such at Camp Frank D Merrill. Technical Exhibit 5-012 provides 
start times for vehicle availability but fails to indicate how long the vehicle is required 
in many instances.  Will the Government define the hours required for this work clearly 
enough so offerors other than the incumbent can determine the hours required/expected 
for this work.

Normally this is performed 11 times per year.  Camp Merrill does not have a similar 
requirement at this time.  End times are dictated by the training events

Ex-42 TE 6.012 thru 6.015 The current data provided does not provide the type of equipment for the work orders 
given, thus not allowing for an accurate evaluation of the maintenance required and the 
level of effort. Please proved the types of equipment that the work orders represent to 
better perform the evaluation.

Please refer to Amendment 0003, TE 6-019.

Ex-43 PWS 5.3.1, TE 5.4-005, 
C-5, pg5

This PWS reference show a Technical Exhibit that was not released to the offerors. Is 
the reference a typographical error, or was the release of the technical exhibit an 
oversight?

TE 5.4-005 is superseded by TE 6-019, for workload by equipment type, please refer to 
TE 6-013A and TE 6-019.  Please refer to revised PWS in Amendment 0005

Ex-44  Technical Exhibit 4-003  
Supply Workload Data 
and  Technical Exhibit 4-
027  Workload Data for 
CIIP and CIF

The workload provided by these documents have different quantities. TE 4-027 
provides the following workload 1. CIIP – Approximately 30,000 Night Issues, 28,000 
Phase 1 Issues, 25,000 Phase 2 issues, and 23,000 Quartermaster Refits for Initial Entry 
Trainees annually.
2. Main Post CIF –65,000 issue and turn-in transactions.  While TE 4-003 provides the 
following workload 1. CIIP – phase 1 customer service  26,542  Phase 1 Issues, 23,718 
Phase 2 issues, and 23,718 Final fit inspections annually. Main Post CIF –79,993 
receipts processed 35,298 individual issues, 41,309 turn in by individuals.  Please 
clarify which Technical Exhibit is correct.

Please use 4-003.  TE4-027 has been deleted in Amendment 0005.

Ex-45 TE 4-003 Supply 
Workload Data and TE 4-
027 Annual Workload 
Data for CIIP and Main 
Post CIF

TE 4-027 lists CIIP workload at 28,000 Phase 1 Issues and 25,000 Phase 2 Issues.  TE 
4-003 lists 26,542 Phase 1 Issues and 23,728 Phase 2 Issues. Which is accurate?

Please use 4-003.  TE4-027 has been deleted in Amendment 0005.

Ex-46 CIF Section of TE 4-003 
Supply Workload Data.  
Notify the commander of 
delinquent accounts.

The workload data was not provided for the number of delinquent accounts.  Does the 
information exist, Is the workload data provided in another document, or should we 
assume this function is not performed at FTBGA?

This information is not available.



Ex-47 CIF Section of TE 4-003 
Supply Workload Data.  
Sizes are not available 
from wholesale system

The workload data was not provided for the number of special measurement items.  
Does the information exist? Is the workload data provided in another document, or 
should we assume this function is not performed at FTBGA?

This information is not available.

Ex-48 CIF Section of TE 4-003 
Supply Workload Data.  
Process Financial 
Liability

The processing of FLIPL under this particular section was addressed in the draft PWS, 
but omitted in the final PWS.  Was this an oversight or intentional?  If this was an 
oversight, the workload data for FLIPL processing was not provided.  Does the 
information exist or should we assume this is not being performed at the CIF?   Is the 
workload data provided in another document?

This information is not available.  Offerors should not rely on any information supplied 
in the draft PWS when preparing its proposal.

Ex-49 Technical Exhibit 5-012, 
Final TE 5-012 
Passenger and Cargo 
Services at Camp James 
E Rudder.xlsx

Technical Exhibit 5-012 shows an 18 day training schedule for TMP supplement for 
motor vehicles and operators in support of the 6th Ranger Battalion. How often does 
the schedule run, i.e. monthly or quarterly, and are there periods when the schedule 
overlaps with previous schedules or upcoming schedules?
Understanding that other remote locations exist for this contract, are there similar 
requirements for Camp Merrill?

Normally this is performed 11 times per year.  Camp Merrill does not have a similar 
requirement at this time.  Please refer to updated TE 5-012.

Ex-50 PWS, Page 61, Section 
C-5, paragraph 5.28.3 
and TE 5-002 
Transportation 
Workload

Paragraph 5.28.3 states the  contactor shall conduct shuttle/courier services and 
DLADS Transport to Remote Camps in accordance with TRADOC TC 21-305-100 
and FM 21-305 and TE 5.2 identifies number of scheduled services passengers of 
nearly 200,000 passengers monthly.  Are all of the nearly 200,000 monthly passengers 
traveling just between sites on Fort Benning or are some traveling to remote sites? How 
many, if any, of the 200,000 monthly passengers are traveling between Fort Benning 
and Camp James E. Rudder, between Fort Benning and Camp Frank D Merrill, or 
between Camp James E. Rudder and Camp Frank D Merrill.  Who provides the drivers 
for the nearly 200,000 scheduled services passengers monthly identified in TE 5.2?  Are 
they all military drivers?

Yes, the estimate is specific to FBGA with the contractor providing the drivers.

Ex-51 TE 6.012 thru 6.015 The Technical Exhibits provide number of work orders and the pieces of equipment, 
but it does not provide the level of maintenance .  Please provide detailed the 
maintenance level of effort for the equipment (Field or sustainment) for the Technical 
Exhibits.

Approximately 95% of the work is Field level, see "note" added to TEs 6-012 - 6015 in 
Amendment 0005.

Ex-52 TE 3-004 SASMO 
System

The TE does not list the system(s) to be used for property accountability (PBUSE, 
DPAS, or other)? Which Government system will be used for property accountability?

PBUSE is required as per PWS paragraph 3.1.5

Ex-53 TE 2-001 Logistics 
Support Element, Item 6

In item 6, the Government states "Global Command and Control System-Army - plan 
and develop timelines for the training and execution of GCCS-A fielding to FBGA 
installation and customer units (FY14)."  Did the Government intend to reference the 
Global Combat Service Support System-Army (GCSS-A)? In other words, The GCSS 
versus the GCCS? It is our understanding that the contractor would be greatly involved 
in the GCSS (workload for the contractor) and not in the GCCS (no workload for the 
contractor).

GCSS-A is the correct system.

Ex-54 Tech Exhibit 6-013 and 
site visit

TE 6-013 shows WO#/Pieces of Equip: Tactical wheeled 405/405, buses 66/66, combat 
veh 188/188 yet during the site visit no combat veh were in any maintenance shop or 
parked in awaiting area other than M-88s. Are combat veh maintenance done at another 
shop not shown during the site visit or is combat vehicle not done on the contract?

The site visit gave you an indication of what was on the ground on one particular day. 
There are no other LRC shops. 

Ex-55 Exhibit B, TE 2-001 Exhibit B, "TE 2-001" is mentioned and supplied. Where does it apply in the PWS as 
there is no reference we can find?

TE 2-001was deleted in Amendment 0005.

Ex-56 Exhibit B, TE 2-001 Is it the government's intention that the offeror should  staff and price this? TE 2-001was deleted in Amendment 0005.



Ex-57 TE 3-005, Ft. Benning 
External SOPs, 
Paragraph 8

Paragraph 8 in TE3-005 issued with Amendment 3 includes the SOP for operations of 
the CONUS Replacement Center (CRC); however, no workload data has been 
provided.  Is the contractor responsible for CRC support operations and will workload 
data be provided?

The contractor is not responsible for CRC support Operations.

Ex-58 CIIP section of  TE 4-
003 Supply Workload 
Data. Semi-inventory 
Adjustment Reports 
(IAR)

The workload data for processing IAR's was not provided.  Does the information exist 
or should we assume this is not being performed at the CIF?   Is the workload data 
provided in another document?

Inventory Adjustment Reports shall be completed in accordance with 735-5, AR 710-2 
and DA PAM 710-2-1.

Ex-59 General: Solicitation 
Files, Attachments, 
Exhibits and CDRLS

Upon review of the Attachments, Exhibits and CDRLS for the solicitation, the 
following A/E items appear to be missing: TE 4-002, TE 4-007, TE 4-010, TE 4-011, 
TE 4-017, TE 4-020, TE 4-021, TE 4-023, TE 5-001, TE 5-004, TE 5-005, TE 5-006, 
TE 5-007, TE 5-010, TE 5-011, TE 6-001, TE 6-002, TE 6-003, TE 6-004, TE 6-005, 
TE 6-006, TE 6-007, TE 6-008, CDRL IMD-02, CDRL IMD-03, CDRL IMD-06, 
CDRL PM-10, CDRL PM-21, and CDRL PM-22.

Please confirm that these Attachments/Exhibits do not exist for this solicitation.

TE 5-004 was added in Amendment 0005  CDRL PM-10 was added in Amendment 
0006.  The remaining items do not exist.

Ex-60 Te 3-003 & TE 5-002 The number of personnel required to run the DOL appears to be significantly less than 
experience  indicates.  For example, TE 3-003 indicates a large number of buses that 
have no corresponding workload in TE 5-002.  Will the Government provide additional 
workload data to clarify? 

TE 3-003 is the Government Furnished Vehicles listing.  TE 5-002 is the 
Transportation Workload Data for the requirement.

Ex-61 TE 3-004 SASMO 
System

Is the contractor required to provide full SASMO support to all listed systems, to 
include SCP/ICP deployment; customer assistance office (CAO) support; and 
functional, technical, and training support?

Refer to TE 3-004 and PWS paragraphs 1.11.1 - 1.11.5 for the full requirement.  

Ex-62 TE 4-003 Supply 
Workload Data Format

Please confirm that rows 67-83 and rows 85-91 should be blank in column A of this 
exhibit. 

Please refer to updated TE 4-003 of Amendment 0005 for the workload requirements.

Ex-63 TE 4-003 Supply 
Workload Data Format

Please confirm that the data in rows 67-83 is workload supporting SARSS II work and 
Bulk Fuels, respectfully. Please confirm.

Please refer to updated TE 4-003 of Amendment 0005 for the workload requirements.  
Refer to PWS paragraphs under 5.11 and 5.16 for SARSS requirements.

Ex-64 Exhibit AB, TE 4-028 TE 4-028, "Supply Services Hours of Operations", does not provide the average 
number of customers on Sunday; will the government provide?

This number could be any number between 50 and 150.  The customers are the 
redeployment personnel that fly into Atlanta and the Government transports to Fort 
Benning on Commercial buses.  Sunday is when the customers turn-in their OCIE to 
CIF.

Question # RFP Reference QUESTION ANSWER
CDRL-1 CDRL-CD-02, CDRL-

CD-03, CDRL-CD-04, 
CDRL-CD-05.

We note that the IPMR report is included in CDRL-CD-02, CDRL-CD-03, CDRL-CD-
04, CDRL-CD-05.  This is typically a Earned Value Management System (EVMS) 
requirement.  Please confirm that this CDRL is required in which case the bidders will 
need to include costs for an EVMS department.

Normally, efforts of this size are required to implement and report EVMS data; 
however, due to the nature of the services provided under EAGLE and Fort Benning in 
particular, a waiver of the full EVMS requirement has been granted.  The CDRLs 
indentified in the RFP will be required in lieu of the full EVMS.  The CDRLs are Not 
Separately Priced (NSP)

CDRL-2 CDRL PM-10 We noted that PM-10 External SOP was excluded from the listing. Is the intentional on 
the Government's part?

Please refer to Amendment 0003, Exhibit CC - TE 3-005 Fort Benning External SOPs

CDRL-3 CDRLs Please confirm that if the Government does not provide acceptance of the CDRL items 
within the approval timeframe identified on each CDRL document, then  the CDRL is 
deemed accepted.  This will eliminate any confusion on what deliverables have been 
accepted.

This is not correct.  When a CDRL is approved the contractor will receive written 
notice from the Government.

CDRL Questions



CDRL-4 CDRL PM-09, Block 12 
and PWS, Attachment 
001, page 16, Para 1.6

PM-09 States in part ..."Draft with proposal.  The Government will review and approve 
the draft copy within 15 days after phase-in begins."  PWS States in part…"The 
contractor shall provide the complete Quality Control Plan no later than 30 calendar 
days after start of work for Government review and approval."  Question 1:  Is the draft 
Quality Control Plan outside the page count?  Question 2: In which section of the 
proposal does the government want the draft Quality Control Plan.  Question 3: How 
will the QCP be evaluated?

The Quality Control Plan is a CDRL (PM-09) required from the successful contractor 
after contract award. 

CDRL-5 CDRL PM-09 (DD 
Form 1423) and PWS 
1.6.1 (Section C-2 page 
16), RFP Section L.4.2 
(pages 52 & 53)

The submittal dates are confusing between the CDRL form and PWS text. Please 
Clarify. CDRL form (DD Form 1423) says "Block 12 – Draft with proposal.  The 
Government will review and approve the draft copy within 15 days after phase-in 
begins " Section L make no mention of submitting a Draft QC Plan with the proposal.  
Also PWS 1.6.1 says  "The contractor shall provide the complete Quality Control Plan 
no later than 30 calendar days after start of work for Government review and approval" 
these various dates inconsistent. Also please clarify if a Draft QC Plan is to be 
submitted with the proposal and if it is we request an extension.

Please refer to revised CDRLs in Amendment 0005.  The Quality Control Plan is a 
CDRL (PM-09) required from the successful contractor after contract award.

CDRL-6 CDRL PM-16 (DD 
Form 1423)

Block 12 in CDRL just says "30 days after contract.", it is unclear if this is 30 days after 
contract award, Contract start date, or contract transition start date, all are different. 
Please clarify.

Please refer to revised CDRLs in Amendment 0005

CDRL-7 CDRL PM-17 (DD 
Form 1423) 

Block 12 in CDRL just says "30 days after contract.", it is unclear if this is 30 days after 
contract award, Contract start date, or contract transition start date, all are different. 
Please clarify.

Please refer to revised CDRLs in Amendment 0005

CDRL-8 CDRL PM-14, Block 16 The Block 12 instructions say the draft copy is due "within 30 days of contract 
performance start date" and the final copy is due "on contract performance start date."  
Is the draft copy due 30 days prior to contract performance start date?

Please refer to revised CDRLs in Amendment 0005

CDRL-9 CDRL PM-16, Block 16 The Block 12 instructions say the first report is due "30 days after contract." Is the 
report due 30 days after contract award or contract performance start date?

Please refer to revised CDRLs in Amendment 0005

CDRL-10 CDRL PM-17, Block 16 The Block 12 instructions say the first report is due "30 days after contract." Is the 
report due 30 days after contract award or contract performance start date?

Please refer to revised CDRLs in Amendment 0005

CDRL-11 CDRL- PM-09 Quality 
Control Plan, Page 1, 
Block 16

Block 16 of CDRL PM-09 Quality Control Plan states "Block 12 – Draft with 
proposal.".  Question: Is the offeror required to provide the draft QC Plan with our 
proposal submission?   There is not a requirement in Section L or Section M for 
submission of a draft QC Control Plan.  If required is there a page limit for the plan and 
should this be submitted under the "General Documents" heading?   Please clarify this 
requirement.

The Quality Control Plan is a CDRL (PM-09) required from the successful contractor 
after contract award.  There is no page limit for CDRLs.

CDRL-12 CDRL PM-02 - 
Personnel 
Qualification/Certificati
on Report

Block 12 states, "Draft copy shall be submitted 15 days after contract performance start 
date. Govt will review and approve the Draft copy within 15 days. Final copy, with 
changes in response to Govt comments, shall be submitted on contract performance 
start date."  Will Government please provide correct due dates for Draft and Final 
reports?

Please refer to revised CDRLs in Amendment 0005

CDRL-13 CDRL PM-17 Would the Government please clarify when PM-17 Occupational Health Hazard Plan is 
submitted? Block 12 states only, "30 days after contract."

Please refer to revised CDRLs in Amendment 0005

CDRL-14 CDRL PM-25 PM-25 OPSEC Plan states the draft is due 90 days after contract award. The Phase-In is 
60 days. Does the Government intend to have the plan submitted prior to or after 
contract start date?

Please refer to revised CDRLs in Amendment 0005

CDRL-15 PWS; C-2/6; 1.3.2.4 CDRL PM-02 is called Personnel Qualification and Certification Report. However, 
CDRL PM-02 is called Project Manager Designation on page C-2/11; 1.4.5

Please refer to revised CDRLs in Amendment 0005

CDRL-16 PWS; C-2/12; 1.5.1 CDRL PM-08 is called Security Plan. However, CDRL PM-08 is called Contractor 
Security Plan on page C-2/16; 1.5.12.2

Please refer to revised CDRLs in Amendment 0005



CDRL-17 Fort-Benning CDRL PM 
17 Occupational Health 
Hazard Plan, Blocks 12 
and 16

Block 16 states the first submission is "30 days after contract." Is this contract award or 
contract start?

Please refer to revised CDRLs in Amendment 0005

CDRL-18 Fort-Benning CDRL PM 
09 Quality Control Plan, 
Blocks 12 and 16

Block 16 states the first submission of the Quality Control Plan is "draft with proposal." 
Section L does not appear to require a draft Quality Control Plan. Please clarify.

Please refer to revised CDRLs in Amendment 0005.  The Quality Control Plan is a 
CDRL (PM-09) required from the successful contractor after contract award.

CDRL-19
Fort-Benning CDRL PM 
16 OSHA 300/OSHA 
300A Reporting, Blocks 
12 and 16

Block 16 states the first submission is "30 days after contract." Is this contract award or 
contract start?

Please refer to revised CDRLS in Amendment 0005

CDRL-20 Exhibit K - PM CDRLs There is inconsistency and resulting confusion between the terms "after transition-in 
begins," "after contract performance start," "after contract award date," and "after 
contract start date." Will the Government define each of these terms, along with "start 
of work," so offerors can properly sequence the deliverables?

Please refer to revised CDRLs in Amendment 0005

CDRL-21 CDRL PM-17, Block 12 Block 12 indicates date of submission is 30 days after contract.  Does this refer to 
contract award or contract start date?

Please refer to revised CDRLs in Amendment 0005

CDRL-22 CDRL PM-25, Block 12 Block 12 indicates the draft copy is submitted NLT 90 Calendar days after contract 
award date with the Govt reviewing the draft copy within 15 days after transition-in 
begins.  When is the OPSEC Plan due to the Govt?

Please refer to revised CDRLs in Amendment 0005

CDRL-23 Section C-2, Paragraph 
1.8

The Draft submission of the Safety Plan indicates "Draft copy shall be submitted 30 
days before contract performance start date."  Should this be changed to read "30 days 
after contract award" or "30 days prior to the start Base Year start date"?

Please refer to revised CDRLs in Amendment 0005

CDRL-24 CDRL PM-04 Did the Government intend to number the Contingency Plan PM-0 (on the CDRL) or as 
listed in the file name as PM-04?

This should read PM-04.
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